
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, September 14, 2015 
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

   

THIS MEETING WILL BE TELECONFERENCED WITH DIRECTOR LATHI FROM THE GUEST PARKING AREA ON 
OCASO CAMINO, WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF PASEO PADRE PARKWAY IN FREMONT, CALIFORNIA.          

THE TELECONFERENCE LOCATION SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

1. Call to Order. 
 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

  
 
3. Roll Call. 

 

 
Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of August 24, 2015. 

 

 

 5. Written Communications.  
 

 
6. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address 
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda item, the 
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 
minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 
 

 
Motion 7. Consider Proposed Changes to the District Mission Statement. 

 

Motion 8. Consider Drafting Response to Recently Received Emails and Provide Direction to Staff 
(to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

Motion 9. Consider the Claim of Mr. Fred Ramos (Star Rooter) for Alleged Losses Related to an 
Assertedly Mismarked USD Sewer Line (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community 
Affairs Committee). 
 

Page 1 of 107



Motion 10. Consider and Provide Direction to Staff Regarding Disclosure Language Pertaining to 
Email Communications on Board of Directors Webpage (to be reviewed by the 
Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

Motion  11. Designate and Appoint Two Board Members to Ad Hoc Subcommittee for Content 
Review of Proposition 218 Notification. 
 

Motion 12. Authorize the General Manager to Approve an Agreement with LookingPoint, Inc. for 
the Phone System Replacement (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee). 
 

Information  13. Information Items: 
a. Check Register. 
 

 

Information  14. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Budget & Finance Committee – scheduled for Thursday, September 10, 2015, at 8:30 a.m. 
b. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – scheduled for Friday, September 11, 2015, at 9:15 a.m. 
c. Construction Committee – will not meet. 
d. Personnel Committee – will not meet. 
 

 
Information  15.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 

 

 
 16.   Other Business: 

a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 
business and are welcome to request information from staff. 

b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 

 
17. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the next scheduled Regular Meeting will be 

in the Boardroom on Monday, September 28, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 
District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

Page 2 of 107



 

 

 

NOTICE OF              All meetings will be held in 

COMMITTEE MEETING            the General Manager’s Office 
                5072 Benson Road, Union City, CA 94587 

 
 

BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 
             

 

Committee Membership: 

Budget and Finance  Directors Manny Fernandez and Pat Kite (Alt. – Jennifer Toy) 
Construction Committee  Directors Tom Handley and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Pat Kite) 
Legal/Community Affairs  Directors Pat Kite and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Tom Handley) 

Legislative Committee  Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt–Pat Kite) 
Personnel Committee  Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Anjali Lathi) 
Audit Committee  Directors Anjali Lathi and Jennifer Toy (Alt. Manny Fernandez) 
 

 

Budget & Finance Committee, Thursday, September 10, 2015, at 8:30 a.m. 

12.  Authorize the General Manager to Approve an Agreement with LookingPoint, Inc. for the 
Phone System Replacement. 

 

Legal/Community Affairs Committee, Friday, September 11, 2015, at 9:15 a.m. 

8.  Consider Drafting Response to Recently Received Emails and Provide Direction to Staff.  

9.  Consider  the  Claim  of Mr.  Fred  Ramos  (Star  Rooter)  for Alleged  Losses  Related  to  an 
Assertedly Mismarked USD Sewer Line. 

10.  Consider and Provide Direction to Staff Regarding Disclosure Language Pertaining to Email 
Communications on Board of Directors Webpage. 

 

 

 
 

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors. 
(Gov. Code Section 11123) 

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken. 

Page 3 of 107



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

August 24, 2015 
 

THIS MEETING WAS TELECONFERENCED WITH DIRECTOR LATHI FROM THE 
GUEST PARKING AREA ON OCASO CAMINO, WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF 

PASEO PADRE PARKWAY IN FREMONT, CALIFORNIA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Toy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Jennifer Toy, President 
  Tom Handley, Vice President 
  Pat Kite, Secretary 
  Manny Fernandez, Director 
  Anjali Lathi, Director (via teleconference) 
   
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager 
  Karen Murphy, District Counsel 
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager  
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager   
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
  Kathy Destafney, Business Services Manager 
  Chris Pachmayer, Electrical/Support Team Manager 
  Sheila Tolbert, Human Resources Manager 
  Laurie Brenner, Organizational Performance Program Manager 
  Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent 
  Todd Jacob, IT Administrator 
  Mike Marzano, Environmental Health and Safety Program Manager 
  Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator 
  Jamie Rojo, Accounting Technician 
  Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst 
  Kristina Silva, Administrative Specialist 
   
GUEST: Alice Johnson, League of Women Voters 
      
 
 
 

Page 4 of 107



APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF AUGUST 10, 2015 
 
It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Vice President Handley, to Approve the 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting held August 10, 2015.  Motion carried with the following 
vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy (via roll call) 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.   
 

a. Monthly Odor Report & Financial Reports:  General Manager Eldredge stated there 
was one odor reported during the month of July 2015, by a resident located on 
Bret Harte Court in Fremont.  District staff inspected the USD mains and city storm 
drain inlets in the area, and no odor was detected.  Staff followed up with the 
resident by providing information regarding how District lines are cleaned, and 
advised the individual to run water in their sinks to fill the P-Traps within their home. 

 
 Principal Financial Analyst Scott reported the following for the month of July: 
 

• Revenues:   
o $519,000 received in capacity fees for Washington Hospital Phase II 
o $101,000 for new Ohlone College buildings  
o $58,000 for Synergy Corporate Housing in Union City 
o $329,000 received in State Revolving Fund proceeds for the Thickener 

project 
 

• Expenses:   
o $65,000 credit was received from ACWD for the washer rebate program 
o $76,000 for actuators and pumpers purchased from the Plant & Pump 

Station Renewal & Replacement   
o $411,000 payment made to the State Revolving Fund loan for the Boyce 

Pump Station   
 

July 2015 investment activities for purchases, interest payments, and maturities 
were reviewed. 

 
Internal fund activity and CalPERS Retiree Medical Trust Statements were 
reviewed.   

 
b. Annual Performance Report for District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures:  

Operational Performance Program Manager Brenner stated the 2015 USD 

Page 5 of 107



Strategic Performance Report, included in the meeting packet, summarizes the 
District’s progress meeting operational and safety objectives and targets for Fiscal 
Year 2014-15.  

 
Operational Performance Program Manager Brenner highlighted several results, 
both positive and negative, included in the staff report. 
 
• There were two incidents of critical asset failure with impacts.  Both incidents 

were associated with rapid regrowth of roots in the sewer mains.   
• The District had two Category 1 sanitary sewer overflows.  The first occurred 

on October 28, 2014, in Fremont on Palm Avenue.  It was reported that 495 
gallons had spilled; 445 gallons of the amount spilled were captured.  The 
second overflow occurred on April 23, 2015, in Fremont on Mission Boulevard.  
It was reported that 3,911 had spilled; 300 gallons of the amount spilled were 
captured. 

• Operational expenditures were 93% of budget, missing the target of 95% by 
2%. 

• District staff responded to 97.7% of all calls for service within one hour.  The 
average response time was less than 42 minutes. 

• 94% of planned outreach activities were completed.  California Association of 
Sanitation Agencies (CASA) presented the District with their Fiscal Year 15 
Achievement Awards in the Outstanding Public Outreach and Education 
category at the CASA conference held in August 2015. 

• Employee turnover rate was 6.2%.  1.6% was due to resignations, the 
remaining amount was due to planned retirements. 

• Assessments of the training module program exceeded the annual target by 
15%. 

• Three lost-time injuries occurred during Fiscal Year 2015 
• Three incidents of vehicle or equipment damage occurred.   
• 80% of employees were trained on mandatory safety subjects. 
• The Workers Compensation Experience Modifier (X-Mod) was decreased to 

1.01 from 1.16. 
• 300 worksite inspections were performed by management. 

 
c. Business Services Balance Score Card Measurements and Results were displayed on 

poster boards at the back of the Boardroom.  Those who were present reviewed the 
posters.  The posters reflected the information included in the meeting packet. 

 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no oral communications at either meeting location. 
 

Page 6 of 107



 
APPROVE THE PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE 
 
This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Business Services Manager Cortes 
stated the salary changes contained in the current pay schedule reflect the salary for the 
newly created Communications and Intergovernmental Communications Coordinator, 
adjustment to the Buyer I salary, and adjustments made to the Unclassified employee 
pay ranges as the result of the 2014 salary survey. 
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Kite, to Approve the Publicly 
Available Pay Schedule Effective August 22, 2015.  Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy (via roll call) 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
DISCUSS AND PROVIDE DIRECTION (AS NECESSARY) REGARDING PUBLIC 
OUTREACH, SCHEDULING, AND PROCEDURES FOR SEWER SERVICE RATES 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  General Manager 
Eldredge stated that at a previous meeting Vice President Handley requested scheduling 
a discussion regarding public outreach for annual rate hearings, public outreach for 
Proposition 218 rate notification, and the District’s procedure for responding to protest 
emails and customer communication. 
 
It was agreed to have the District hold one town hall meeting for the Proposition 218 rate 
notification prior to the Public Hearing.  The desired date for the Public Hearing is 
December 14, 2015.  Concerns were expressed that the schedule of deadlines for 
preparation was too aggressive.  A consensus was reach that an alternate date of   
January 25, 2016, could be used at Staff’s discretion. 
 
Information for fact sheets and notifications will be subject to legal review.  The Board 
agreed an Ad Hoc Committee, consisting of two Board members, should review the 
content of the Proposition 218 notification mailer.  
 
Board members agreed that it is important to acknowledge and respond in a timely 
manner to customer communications.  Any protest emails and customer communications 
regarding sewer service rates will be incorporated into the public record and the author 
will be advised of the public hearing date. 
 
The Board agreed to the following by consensus:  

1. Public outreach for annual rate hearing procedures will not change as proposed 
by staff.  

2. Public outreach for Proposition 218 rate notification will include a town hall 
meeting.  The Union Sanitary District Boardroom may be used if an outside 

Page 7 of 107



location is not feasible.  The town hall meeting is a one-time trial evaluation.  A 
Public Hearing was tentatively scheduled for December 14, 2015.  An alternate 
date of January 25, 2016, can be utilized if needed at staff’s discretion.  A two-
member ad hoc committee will be created for the Proposition 218 rate notification 
information. 

3. A standard response will be created for any protest email and customer 
communication regarding sewer service rates.   

 
It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to direct staff to 
proceed with the addition of a town hall meeting to occur prior to the Public Hearing to 
consider rates; to proceed to schedule the Public Hearing for Proposition 218 rate 
notification with a desired date of December 14, 2015 (or alternate date of                   
January 25, 2016); to create a two-member ad hoc committee to review content of the 
Proposition 218 rate notification information; and to have staff create a standard response 
to reply to communications regarding sewer service rates.  Motion carried by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy (via roll call) 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT AND TASK 
ORDER NO. 1 WITH WEST YOST ASSOCIATES FOR THE DESIGN OF THE SLUDGE 
DEGRITTER SYSTEM PROJECT 
 
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Degritter Building was constructed in 
1985, and used to house five belt filter presses to dewater biosolids prior to disposal.  The 
District replaced the belt filter presses with centrifuges, and replaced the original grit 
removal equipment with two degritter units.  The two existing sludge degritters receive 
sludge flow from primary clarifiers 1 through 6.  Both degritters are required to operate 
concurrently in order to handle the sludge flow from the primary clarifiers.  When one of 
the degritters is out of service, the other unit does not have the capacity to process all of 
the primary sludge flow.  This results in additional sludge accumulation in the primary 
clarifiers and the lower sludge flow rate could affect the ability of the thickeners to 
efficiently settle the solids.  Therefore, operation staff determined an additional degritter 
was needed.  Staff also identified a need to install a new chemical tank and pump system 
to dose ferrous chloride into the degritted sludge pipeline.  The proposed project will 
construct a third degritter, install new sludge piping, instrumentation, grit conveyor, 
chemical tank, and chemical metering pumps.   
 
Staff prepared a Request for Proposal for design services for the project and contacted 
five firms from the District’s consultant short list.  Design of the project is schedule to be 
completed in the summer of 2016, with construction to follow in fall of 2016.  Staff 
recommended the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement and 

Page 8 of 107



Task Order No. 1 with West Yost Associates in the amount of $180,629 for design of the 
Sludge Degritter System Project. 
 
It was moved by Vice President Handley, seconded by Secretary Kite, to Authorize the 
General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with West Yost 
Associates for the Design of the Sludge Degritter System Project.  Motion carried with the 
following vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy (via roll call) 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
DESIGNATE AND APPOINT TWO BOARD REPRESENTATIVES TO AD HOC 
SUBCOMMITTEE ON GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS 
 
District General Counsel Murphy stated that per the employment agreement between the 
District and Mr. Eldredge, the General Manager’s salary should be reviewed annually.  
This agenda item requested two representatives be designated to an Ad Hoc 
Subcommittee.   
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Vice President Handley, to appoint 
Secretary Kite and Vice President Handley to serve as representatives to the Ad Hoc 
Subcommittee on General Manager Contract Negotiations.  Motion carried with the 
following vote: 
 
AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy (via roll call) 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Check Register   
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
PG&E Net Metering Annual True-up for FY 15 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Treatment & Disposal 
Services Manager Lopez stated the District’s electrical service for the wastewater 
treatment plant was converted to a Net Energy Metering (NEM) tariff with the installation 
of the solar carport project in August 2011.  The cost of electrical generation and related 
non-generation charges are billed at the end of a 12-month period, which is known as the 
“true-up” bill.  A true-up bill in the amount of $770,152.28 was received in August which 
includes previously unbilled charges accumulated between July 2014 and June 2015.  
The payment appears on the current check register.  The total FY15 cost for electricity at 
the treatment plant was $1,361,495.54.  

Page 9 of 107



 
National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) Peak Performance Award 
for Calendar Year 2014 
Treatment & Disposal Services Manager Lopez stated the District received a Platinum 
Peak Performance Award from NACWA for the 2014 calendar year.  NACWA Peak 
Performance Awards recognize member agency facilities for outstanding compliance with 
their National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit limits.  The 
Platinum Award recognizes facilities that have achieved 100% compliance with their 
NPDES permits for five consecutive calendar years.  The District has been recognized 
through the Peak Performance Award Program for the past 22 years and has been 
presented with 2 Silver Awards, 16 Gold Awards, and 4 Platinum Awards.  The Peak 
Performance Award reflects the District’s commitment to excellence in environmental 
protection. 
 
The National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) Excellence in 
Management (EIM) Gold Award 
Operational Performance Program Manager Brenner stated the District was selected to 
receive an Excellence in Management Gold recognition award from NACWA, based on 
our management practices, performance measures and results.  In order to be eligible for 
this award, Peak Performance awards must have been previously achieved.  This award 
is good for 3 years and enables the District to be eligible for other certifications.   
 
Report from the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Commission Meeting held 
August 13, 2015 
Vice President Handley stated nutrient reduction was the main focus of the discussion at 
the meeting.   The Managers Advisory Committee reviewed submitted proposals for the 
Hayward Effluent Pump Station and discussed the selection process.  The Operations 
and Maintenance (O&M) Committee provided an update regarding EBDA performance.    
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
The Budget & Finance, Construction, Legal/Community Affairs, and Personnel 
Committees met. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
General Manager Eldredge reported the following:  

• Sheila Tolbert, newly hired Human Resources Manager was introduced. 
• Chris Pachmayer, recently promoted Electrical/Support Team Manager was 

introduced.  Mr. Pachmayer was previously an Associate Engineer in the Capital 
Improvements Projects team.   

• The Co-digestion Pilot program experienced minor operational issues; these type 
of issues are typical with pilot programs. An increase in gas emission has been 
documented and the District will continue to document progress for several months 
evaluate this program.    

• A bike rack will be installed in front of the District Administration Building. 
• The District will host a vendor fair on October 15, 2015.   

Page 10 of 107



• The General Manager will be out of the office September 7 - 18, 2015.  
• The District received an award at the California Association of Sanitation Agencies 

(CASA) conference in recognition of our open house.  Many agencies at the 
conference reached out to USD staff to enquire about the specifics of the open 
house. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
There was no other business. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:54 p.m. to the Special Meeting to be held in the 
Boardroom on Thursday, August 27, 2015, at 11:30 a.m. 
 
The Board will then adjourn to the next scheduled Regular Board Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, September 14, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.   
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     PAT KITE  
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY  
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
PRESIDENT 
 
 
 

Adopted this 14th day of September, 2015 

Page 11 of 107



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: September 14, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
                      Laurie Brenner, Organizational Performance Program Manager 

 
 
SUBJECT:         Agenda Item No. 7 - Meeting of September 14, 2015 
                          Consider Proposed Changes to the District Mission Statement  
  
Recommendation 
 
Review and edit proposed new language in the District Vision and Mission Statements as 
necessary. Seeking Board approval of proposed changes. 
 
Background 
 
The Executive Team reviews the District’s Vision and Mission statements on an annual basis 
during strategic planning activities.  Due to the changing nature of the water and wastewater 
industry, that team has proposed the addition of language reflecting the District’s desire to 
increase recycling and beneficial resource reuse activities to minimize our impacts on the 
environment. 
 
Both the original document and the DRAFT including proposed changes (in red font) are 
attached for your consideration. 

 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 12 of 107



MISSION STATEMENT 
April 25, 2006 
 

 
 
To safely and responsibly collect and treat wastewater for the Tri-cities 
while protecting human health and improving the environment in a way 

that benefits our customers, employees and the community. 
 
 
How we accomplish our Mission: 
 
We demonstrate our commitment to safety by: 

• Having an effective safety program 
• Protecting employees and the community 
• Committing resources (equipment, training, staff) 
• Planning to work safely 
• Looking out for each other while we work 

 
We demonstrate responsibility by: 

• Being fiscally responsible 
• Being accountable for our actions and decisions 
• Anticipating and meeting future needs and demonstrating stewardship 
• Maintaining compliance with laws and regulations 
• Effectively managing our assets 
• Continuously improving our processes 

 
We collect and treat wastewater, including: 

• Maintaining our infrastructure 
• Providing capacity in the collection system and plant 
• Regulating connections  
• Disposing of treated wastewater and biosolids 
• Effectively using technology 
• Having effective pretreatment and pollution prevention programs 
• Testing for compliance 

 
We protect human health by: 

• Preventing sewer spills and back-ups 
• Reducing health risks through treatment of wastewater 
• Responding to emergencies 

 
We improve the environment by: 

• Enhancing the San Francisco Bay and Hayward Marsh ecosystems 
• Maintaining compliance with effluent and air quality regulations 
• Promoting pollution prevention 
• Recycling biosolids 
• Co-generating electric power  

 

Page 13 of 107



MISSION STATEMENT 
April 25, 2006 
 

 
 

 
We benefit our customers by: 

• Providing reliable service 
• Being fiscally responsible and cost effective, and providing value 
• Promptly responding to customers’ needs 
• Being professional and courteous 
• Proactively and creatively meeting customer needs 
• Supporting businesses through permitting, education and by providing 

capacity 
 
 
We benefit our employees by: 

• Providing competitive wages and benefits in a stable work environment 
• Providing a safe work environment 
• Demonstrating equality and fairness 
• Valuing employee input, and offering opportunities for involvement and 

creativity 
• Recognizing employee contributions 
• Providing training and resources 
• Communicating and sharing information openly and honestly 
• Encouraging cooperation and collaboration  

 
 
We benefit the community by: 

• Protecting the environment and controlling odors 
• Communicating with the public and educating them on wastewater issues 
• Responding to emergencies and providing mutual aid 
• Participating in community outreach activities and charity events 
• Contributing to the wastewater treatment profession by participating in 

professional associations, partnering with other agencies and 
organizations, and sharing best practices 

• Working cooperatively with cities and other government agencies  
 
 

Page 14 of 107



MISSION STATEMENT 
June 2015 revision DRAFT 

 
 

 
To safely and responsibly collect, treat and recover/reuse wastewater 

generated by our customers, while protecting human health and 
improving the environment in a way that benefits all stakeholder 

groups. 
 
 
How we accomplish our Mission: 
 
We demonstrate our commitment to safety by: 

• Having an effective safety program 
• Protecting employees and the community 
• Allocating adequate resources to ensure safe operations (equipment, 

training, staff) 
• Planning to work safely 
• Collaboratively promoting a safe work environment 

 
We demonstrate responsibility by: 

• Being fiscally responsible 
• Being accountable for our actions and decisions 
• Anticipating and meeting future needs and demonstrating stewardship 
• Maintaining compliance with laws and regulations 
• Effectively managing our assets 
• Continuously improving our processes 
• Looking for innovative ways to reduce or reuse our waste streams 

 
We collect, treat and recover/reuse wastewater, including: 

• Maintaining our infrastructure 
• Providing capacity in the collection system and plant 
• Regulating connections  
• Increasing our efforts for resource recovery (biogas, biosolids, etc.) 
• Effectively using technology 
• Having effective pretreatment and pollution prevention programs 
• Testing for compliance 
• Maximizing water reclamation and reuse potential 
• Working towards energy neutrality 

 
We protect human health by: 

• Preventing sewer spills and back-ups 
• Reducing health risks through treatment of wastewater 
• Responding to emergencies 

 
 
 

Page 15 of 107



MISSION STATEMENT 
June 2015 revision DRAFT 

 
 
 

We improve the environment by: 
• Improving water quality in the San Francisco Bay and estuary  
• Maintaining compliance with effluent and air quality regulations 
• Promoting pollution prevention through our outreach and educational 

programs 
• Utilizing solar installations whenever feasible; maximizing our use of green 

energy sources 
 
We benefit our stakeholder groups by: 
  

• Providing reliable service 
• Being fiscally responsible and cost effective, and providing value 
• Promptly responding to customers’ needs 
• Being professional and courteous 
• Proactively and creatively meeting customer needs 
• Supporting businesses through permitting, education and by providing 

capacity 
 

 
• Providing competitive wages and benefits in a stable work environment 
• Providing a safe work environment 
• Demonstrating equality and fairness 
• Valuing employee input, and offering opportunities for involvement and 

creativity 
• Recognizing employee contributions 
• Providing training and resources 
• Communicating and sharing information openly and honestly 
• Encouraging cooperation and collaboration  

 
  

• Protecting the environment and controlling odors 
• Communicating with the public and educating them on wastewater issues 
• Responding to emergencies and providing mutual aid 
• Participating in community outreach activities and charity events 
• Contributing to the wastewater treatment profession by participating in 

professional associations, partnering with other agencies and 
organizations, and sharing best practices 

• Working cooperatively with cities and other government agencies  
 

C
us

to
m

er
 G

ro
up

 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
C

om
m

un
ity

 

Page 16 of 107



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE:  September 1, 2015 
 
MEMO TO:  Board of Directors ‐ Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy, General Counsel 
   
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item No. 8 ‐ Meeting of September 14, 2015 

Consider Drafting Response to Recently Received Emails and Provide Direction 
to Staff 

 
   
Recommendation 
Consider responding to recently received emails and provide direction to staff. 
 
Background 
Director  Lathi  requested  this  item  be  presented  to  the  Board  for  consideration,  and  Vice 
President Handley  seconded  the  request.   The Board of Directors  received  the  two attached 
emails requesting a response from the District.   
 
Staff recommends the Board choose one of the following options: 
 

1. Do not send a response to the attached emails. 
2. Authorize staff to draft and send a response to the attached emails. 
3. Authorize  staff  to work with  the Board President  to draft and send a  response  to  the 

attached emails. 
 

 
Attachments 

Page 17 of 107



1

Regina McEvoy

From: Paul Eldredge
Sent: Wednesday, September 02, 2015 3:11 PM
To: Karen Murphy
Cc: Regina McEvoy
Subject: FW: Ordinance NO.31.38

Email for agenda item #1 
 
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. 
General Manager 
Union Sanitary District 
510‐477‐7502 
paule@unionsanitary.ca.gov 
 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Timothy Swenson    
Sent: Thursday, July 09, 2015 8:32 PM 
To: Board of Directors <BoardofDirectors@unionsanitary.ca.gov>; ContactUSD 
<ContactUSD@unionsanitary.ca.gov> 
Subject: Ordinance NO.31.38 
 
In the July 9th edition of The Argus, Eric Tsai wrote an opinion piece entitled "Public input needed over 
sanitary district's rate hikes."  
Eric makes some interesting points, esp. the one about so few people attending USD public board meetings. 
 
So, I downloaded the packet for the next board meeting and gave it a read.  I was intrigued this one sentence 
on page 27 of the package: 
 
"A majority of the property owners have not protested the rate increase in accordance with  Proposition 218 
requirements." 
 
I'm unfamiliar with Prop 28, so I found the text of the proposition and reviewed it.  The section that I believe 
that statement from page 27 is referring to is as follows: 
 
"(e) .....The agency shall not impose an assessment if there is a majority protest. A majority protest exists if, 
upon the conclusion of the hearing, ballots submitted in opposition to the assessment exceed the ballots 
submitted in favor of the assessment." 
 
This was from Section 4 of the proposition.  Further down I found this 
section: 
 

Page 18 of 107



2

"(a) Any assessment imposed exclusively to finance the capital costs or maintenance and operation expenses 
for sidewalks, streets, sewers, water, flood control, drainage systems or vector control. Subsequent increases 
in such assessments shall be subject to the procedures and approval process set forth in Section 4." 
 
It clearly states that USD is required to follow the procedure in Section 4.  Given the statement on Page 27, it 
appears that USD also feels that it must follow Section 4.  Section 4 states: 
 
"(c) The amount of the proposed assessment for each identified parcel shall be calculated and the record 
owner of each parcel shall be given written notice by mail of the proposed assessment," 
 
The problem I see is that Section 4 requires USD to sent out a mailer to all property owners that are affected 
by the rate increase (hence the term "ballot" in section (e).  I have not seen any mailing from USD with a ballot 
for me to vote on the increase. 
 
Hopefully it can be explained how item (e) from Section 4 can be applied without applying section (c). 
 
 
Timothy Swenson 

 
Union City, CA 94587 

 
 
 

Page 19 of 107



1

Regina McEvoy

From: Paul Eldredge
Sent: Wednesday, September 02, 2015 3:11 PM
To: Karen Murphy
Cc: Regina McEvoy
Subject: FW: Comments on Sewer Service Charge Staff Report

Email for agenda item #2 
 
Paul	R.	Eldredge,	P.E.	
General	Manager	
Union	Sanitary	District	
510‐477‐7502	
paule@unionsanitary.ca.gov	
 

 
 
From: Eric Tsai    
Sent: Tuesday, July 14, 2015 11:29 AM 
To: Board of Directors <BoardofDirectors@unionsanitary.ca.gov> 
Subject: Comments on Sewer Service Charge Staff Report 

 
Directors, 
 
The Board packet for the July 13 Board meeting contained a staff report for the proposed sewer service charge 
increase. 
 
The staff report notes that the District received several emails that contained "inaccurate and confusing" 
information.  Most of the people who emailed the District received information from me so I would like to 
address the "inaccurate and confusing" information. 
 
Public:  In the last 10 years (2006 – 2015) USD has raised the sewer service charge by 74%.  
District:  The total percentage of rate increase over this period of time adds up to 56.9%. 
 
My response:  The District's figure of 56.9% is calculated by adding up each year's rate increase.  Adding up 
each year's rate increase is a very odd method to inform the public how much rates have increased over a period 
of time.  In 2005, the sewer service charge was $205.30.  In 2015, the sewer service charge was $357.02.  This 
is a 73.9% increase in 10 years and not a 56.9% increase in 10 years. 
 
It is very surprising the District would state the figure of 56.9% as no one in finance, accounting, or people with 
common sense would use that figure to assess how much rates have increased over the last 10 years. 
 
Public:  During the same time period, employee compensation increased 65%. 
District:  During this period of time, employee’s salaries increased by 45.5% while employee 
total compensation (salary, health benefits, pension etc.) increased by 54.6%. 
 

Page 20 of 107



2

My response:  I do not know how the District arrived at 54.6% but this is how I arrived at 65%:   
 
On page 28 of the fiscal year 2005 CAFR, I added "Salaries and wages," "Employee benefits," and "Temp help" 
for 2004.  This figure is $12.8 million.  On page 37 of the fiscal year 2014 CAFR, the same line items for 2014 
add up to $21.2 million.  The 10 year increase in total employee compensation is 65%.   
 
I would like the District to explain why my calculation is incorrect and how the District arrived at 54.6%. 
 
Public:  Nearly 2/3 of USD’s operating expenses are spent on employee compensation.   
District:  Approximately 41% of the District’s total budget accounts for salary and benefits for employees.  
 
My response:  As I calculated above, total employee compensation in 2014 was $21.2 million while operating 
expenses (excluding depreciation) was $32.9 million.  Therefore, 64.3%, or nearly 2/3, of the District's 
operating expenses are spent on employee compensation.  I am not sure how this fact is "inaccurate and 
confusing". 
 
The District calculated the 41% figure based on the District's total budget, which includes capital 
expenditures.  When analysts review the financial metrics of companies, they compare each operating expense 
as a percentage of total operating expenses.  They do not compare each operating expense to the total budget.  I 
would like the District to confirm whether or not total employee compensation in 2014 was 64.3% of total 
operating expenses (excluding depreciation). 
 
Given that the District has accused the public of relying on "inaccurate and confusing" information, it is 
incumbent on the District to back up their statements.  I would also hope the Directors would voluntarily 
challenge District staff on their figures rather than accept everything they say as fact. 
 
My last comment has to do with emails to the bod@unionsanitary.ca.gov address.  The staff report includes 
emails to that address; yet, the headers of each email says Paul Eldredge.  Can you explain this?  Does Mr. 
Eldredge or any other staff member automatically receive emails sent to bod@unionsanitary.ca.gov?  If so, this 
is a problem that needs to be corrected immediately as the public should be able to communicate with their 
representatives in confidence.  If you decide to later share emails with District staff, that is your decision, but 
emails sent to the Board should not be automatically sent to District staff. 
 
-Eric Tsai 

Page 21 of 107



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: September 8, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

J. Leah Castella, Assistant General Counsel  
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 – Meeting of September 14, 2015 

Consider the Claim of Mr. Fred Ramos (Star Rooter) for Alleged Losses 
Related to an Assertedly Mismarked USD Sewer Line   

 
Recommendation 
Deny Claim and send written notice of denial to claimant.   
 
Background 
Mr. Fred Ramos of Star Rooter entered an Underground Service Alert request for the District to 
mark our main in the vicinity of Cushing Rd and Fremont Blvd for a sewer lateral replacement 
they were performing. On April 15, 2015, Mr. Ramos submitted a claim to the District and 
asserted that the District mismarked the line, and as a result, additional costs were incurred. To 
support his claim, Mr. Ramos provided the District with a series of invoices, but did not specify 
which if any invoices were for work done as a result of the allegedly mismarked line. Nor is it 
possible to tell from the invoices whether the line was, in fact, mismarked.  During our initial 
conversation with Mr. Ramos, he was unable to provide an accurate accounting of the costs 
incurred. We then forwarded the claim to Carl Warren, our insurance adjuster, for further 
investigation and processing.   
 
Mr. Warren has requested that Mr. Ramos provide him with additional information regarding 
the claim on six different occasions.  In lieu of providing additional information that would 
allow us to accurately assess whether the line was mismarked and whether additional costs 
were incurred as a result of mismarking, the only additional information provided by Mr. 
Ramos is a single check that he received from his client for $60,750.00. Mr. Ramos did not 
include with the check any information that would allow us to ascertain whether there is still a 

Page 22 of 107



balance due and/or whether the amount paid was higher than anticipated as a result of the 
allegedly mismarked line.  Since receipt of the check on June 5, 2015, Mr. Warren has heard 
nothing from Mr. Ramos.   
 
Because it has been more than 45 days since this claim was submitted, it is currently deemed 
denied by operation of law.  When a claim is denied by operation of law, a claimant has two 
years to file a complaint.  A public agency can, however, send a notice of rejection of claim 
even after a claim is deemed denied by operation of law. By doing so, the agency can shorten 
the statute of limitations from two years to six months. Since Mr. Ramos has failed to 
substantiate his claim despite numerous attempts to get additional information, we 
recommend denying the claim and sending a notice of rejection of claim to Mr. Ramos.    

 

Page 23 of 107



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: September 2, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 

Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 - Meeting of September 14, 2015 
 Consider and Provide Direction to Staff Regarding Disclosure Language 

Pertaining to Email Communications on Board of Directors Webpage 
  
Recommendation 
 
Consider and provide direction regarding disclosure language to be posted below Board email 
addresses on the District’s website. 
 
Background 
 
The July 27, 2015, Board meeting included a discussion regarding addition of an email 
disclosure statement to the Board’s webpage.  The discussion occurred following an inquiry 
from a constituent inquiring if “all Board member emails” were also directed to staff members 
and whether such communications are confidential.   
 
District email communications are governed by the California Public Records Act. Pursuant to 
this Act, email communications to individual members or to the entire Board of Directors, 
referencing District business and directed to official email addresses, are treated as public 
records. It is not uncommon for certain agency employees to receive copies of emails sent to 
the governing body. This is to ensure that any time-sensitive emails are reviewed in a timely 
fashion and that correspondence regarding agenda items are properly incorporated into the 
public record.  
 

Page 24 of 107



The Board was informed that some agencies place a “disclaimer” on their website which states 
that emails sent to the Board of Directors are subject to disclosure. After consideration of the 
matter, the Board directed staff to develop disclosure language for its page on the public 
website. 
 
Draft language: 
 
The language below is proposed verbiage to be posted on the Board page of USD’s Public 
Website (image of draft web page attached): 
 

 
Emails sent to the entire Board at BOD@unionsanitary.ca.gov are automatically forwarded to 
certain USD staff members. This is to ensure that any time-sensitive issues are brought to the 
District’s attention in a timely manner, and to incorporate correspondence pertaining to 
agenda items into the public record. Emails to individual board members are not automatically 
forwarded to staff. 
 
District email communications are governed by the California Public Records Act. Pursuant to 
the Act, emails to individual Board members or the entire Board of Directors regarding District 
business that are sent to the official addresses above are treated as public records. 
 
 
Staff requests that the Board consider this verbiage and provide direction regarding adding 
disclosure language to the public website. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 107

mailto:BOD@unionsanitary.ca.gov


Page 26 of 107



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: September 4, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
 Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11 - Meeting of September 14, 2015 
 Designate and Appoint Two Board Representatives to Ad Hoc Subcommittee 

for Content Review of Proposition 218 Notification 
  
Recommendation 
 
Staff requests that the Board designate and appoint two representatives to an ad hoc 
subcommittee for content review of a Proposition 218 notification, and decide whether the ad 
hoc subcommittee will provide final review and approval of the notification mailer without 
further Board review. 
 
Background 
 
The August 24, 2015, Board meeting included a discussion regarding creation of an ad hoc 
subcommittee to review content of a Proposition 218 notification. The discussion occurred 
following a Board decision to tentatively schedule a Public Hearing for December 14, 2015, to 
consider rates for FY 2017, FY 2018, and FY 2019. In order to meet scheduling needs for 
notification mailing requirements, the Board decided that review of notification content by an 
ad hoc subcommittee would be the most efficient process for obtaining Board input.  The 
Board also determined that staff has discretion to utilize the alternate date for the public 
hearing of January 25, 2016, if necessary. 
 
In order to stay on schedule for a December 14, 2015 public hearing, there is limited 
opportunity for the ad hoc subcommittee to make revisions. The tentative schedule is for the 
ad hoc subcommittee to meet during the week of September 21, 2015, to complete review and 

Page 27 of 107



comment on the content of the draft notification. If a second ad hoc subcommittee meeting is 
desired, it must also take place during the same week. This timeline is based on the need to 
provide enough time for graphic design of the notification, preparation of the finalized artwork 
for printing, and to meet the printer’s requirements for printing and mailing preparation 
before the legal mailing deadline of October 30, 2015. Options for mailer sizes will be exhibited 
for the subcommittee’s information; however, final content choices and cost considerations 
will determine the selection of mailer size.  
 
Approved content will be forwarded to a graphic designer for incorporation into a mailer 
layout. Graphic design is tentatively scheduled to take place between the dates of September 
25, 2015 and October 1, 2015.  Final review and approval of the notification mailer must be 
completed by Friday, October 2, 2015, by the ad hoc subcommittee or the full Board.  This 
means that the ad hoc committee, or the full Board, will need to meet to review the final draft 
of the notification mailer on October 2, 2015.  Print preparation and forwarding of artwork to 
the printer will take place the week of October 5, 2015. If meeting this timeline is not possible, 
staff can then utilize the alternate date for the public hearing of January 25, 2016. 
 
Staff believes the most productive way to obtain detailed feedback from the subcommittee 
members will be at an in-person meeting at District offices. All edits and revisions would be 
discussed and decided upon at the subcommittee meeting. An in-person meeting will allow for 
clear communication, ensure understanding and agreement on final edits between all 
participants, and avoid extension of the review deadline. The Board may also decide as part of 
this Agenda item if the ad hoc subcommittee would have final approval of content and the 
notification mailer without further review by the entire Board. 
   
Staff requests that the Board designate and appoint two representatives to an ad hoc 
subcommittee for content review of a Proposition 218 notification, and decide whether the ad 
hoc subcommittee will provide final review and approval of the notification mailer without 
further Board review. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28 of 107



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: September 14, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Richard A. Cortes, Business Services Manager 
Todd W. Jacob, Information Technology Administrator 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 12 - Meeting of September 14, 2015 
 Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with LookingPoint, 

Inc. for the Phone System Replacement 
  
Recommendation 
 
Authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with LookingPoint, Inc. for the phone 
system replacement for an amount not to exceed $194,094.04.  In addition, approve $82,000 
in other project related costs.  
 
Background 
 
The District’s current Nortel phone system is a critical system that was implemented with the 
new Administration building in 2001.  Minor upgrades have been performed over the last 14 
years but it is at the end of life.  Furthermore, Nortel went bankrupt several years ago so there 
is no existing Nortel upgrade path. 
 
Staff reviewed the Cisco, Avaya, and Microsoft phone system solutions and selected Cisco 
based on the District’s current and future needed, reliability, compatibility with the existing 
Cisco network infrastructure, and the Gartner study on “Magic Quadrant for Corporate 
Telephony” showing Cisco as the leader with 14.5% market share. 
 
Staff decided to use the pre-negotiated CMAS (California Multiple Award Schedule) contract to 
obtain pricing from the following vendors that we currently do business with.   
 

Page 29 of 107

http://www.gartner.com/technology/reprints.do?id=1-2365ZA5&ct=141014&st=sb
http://www.gartner.com/technology/reprints.do?id=1-2365ZA5&ct=141014&st=sb


• VOX, the District’s current phone system support provider 
• LookingPoint, the District’s current network support provider 
• CDWG, the District’s primary IT reseller 

 
Quotes were received from all three vendors above and evaluated by the Phone System 
Upgrade project team: 
 

• Todd Jacob, Information Technology Administrator 
• Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
• Michael Gill, Senior Network Administrator 

 
Description VOX LookingPoint CDWG 

Quote Total  $       212,949.93   $       194,094.04   $       223,687.52  

    Network Upgrades  $         50,000.00   $         50,000.00   $         50,000.00  
Fabrication and Cabling  $         25,000.00   $         25,000.00   $         25,000.00  
IT Staff Training  $           7,000.00   $           7,000.00   $           7,000.00  
Additional Items Estimated Total  $         82,000.00   $         82,000.00   $         82,000.00  

    Final Implementation Total  $       294,949.93   $       276,094.04   $       305,687.52  
 
Note that the conversion from a digital phone system to an IP phone system requires new 
network switches, cabling, and IT training to implement and support this new Cisco IP phone 
system at an estimated cost of $82,000. 
 
The budget for this project is $250,000 funded out of the Information System renewal and 
replacement (ISR&R) fund. The final implementation cost for LookingPoint is $276,094.04 
which is $26,094.04 over the project budget and will be absorbed by the ISR&R fund.   
 
The project is scheduled to be completed by June 2016. 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with 
LookingPoint, Inc. for the phone system replacement for an amount not to exceed 
$194,094.04. In addition, approve $82,000 in other project related costs. 
 
PRE/RAC/TWJ 
 
Attachments: Quote, Statement of Work 
 
 

Page 30 of 107



Page 31 of 107



Page 32 of 107



Page 33 of 107



Page 34 of 107



Page 35 of 107



Page 36 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

1                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 

[CUSTOMER] 
[Project Name] 

Version 1.0 

Union Sanitary District 

Unified Communications Deployment 

SoW Version: 1.1 

 

 

Presented by: Jack Cartwright 
Phone: 925-566-3473 
Email: Jack@LookingPoint.com 

Page 37 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

2                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

Contents 

1. Document Control .........................................................................................................................................................................3 

1.1. Preparation ................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

1.2. Release Information ................................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

1.3. Copyright and Intellectual Property ................................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Project Summary ............................................................................................................................................................................3 

2.1. Project Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

3. Project Proposal .............................................................................................................................................................................3 

3.1. Methodology ................................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

3.2. Planning and Design ................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

3.3. Equipment List ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Network Diagram ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

3.4. Staging and Configuration ..................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

3.5. Implementation of Unified Communications .............................................................................................................................. 9 

3.6. Cutover and Migration Support ....................................................................................................................................................... 17 

3.7. Monitoring .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 17 

3.8. Testing and Validation ......................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

3.9. Documentation ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

3.10. Training................................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

3.11. Project Completion ........................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

4. Project Management ................................................................................................................................................................. 19 

5. Change Order Management ................................................................................................................................................... 20 

6. Customer Responsibilities ...................................................................................................................................................... 20 

7. Professional Services Pricing ................................................................................................................................................ 21 

7.1. Description of Services......................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

7.2. Hourly Rates (Out of Scope Work) ................................................................................................................................................. 22 

7.3. Onsite Service Locations ..................................................................................................................................................................... 22 

7.4. Billing Terms ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 22 

7.5. Project Cost ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 23 

Project Acceptance .............................................................................................................................................................................. 23 

 
 
 

Page 38 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

3                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

1. Document Control 

1.1. Preparation 
Prepared By: Notes Date 

Sean Barr First Draft 6/11/2015 

Sean Barr Second Draft 8/26/2015 

1.2. Release Information 
Version Date Pages Affected Remarks 

1.0 6/11/2015 All First Draft 

1.1 8/26/2015 All Added Nortel Configuration 
Review 

1.3. Copyright and Intellectual Property 
 

Copyright and other Intellectual property rights in any original projects, specifications, 
reports or other items arising in the course of, or resulting from the project shall remain 
the property of LookingPoint, Inc. although Union Sanitary District shall have a non-
exclusive and non-transferable license to all such items for its own purposes. Nothing in 
this agreement shall enable either party to make use of any intellectual property rights 
vested in the other party prior to the commencement of this assignment. 

2. Project Summary 

2.1. Project Introduction 
 

Union Sanitary District is looking to deploy a new Cisco Unified Communications 
infrastructure.  They will be implementing a Unified Communications Manager, Unified 
Unity Connection, Presence, Cisco Paging Server, Cisco Emergency Responder, and Voice 
Gateways to support their telecommunications needs. We will also be implementing a fax 
solution to enable inbound faxing capability. 
 
Union Sanitary District has engaged LookingPoint to complete the deployment of the new 
system.  This solution will be designed using Cisco virtual application servers and VMware 
vSphere hypervisor running on Cisco UCS server hardware. 

3. Project Proposal 
 

LookingPoint will provide a Principal Network Architect to design and review 
configurations. The Principal Network Architect will be responsible for the overall success 
of the project. Major design changes and issues related to the project will be escalated to 
this resource. 
 
LookingPoint will also provide a Senior Network Engineer to implement and deploy the 
design. This resource will work onsite and remotely as needed to complete the project. In 
some cases the Principal Network Architect will fulfill this role. 

Page 39 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

4                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 
 
 

3.1. Methodology 
 

Aligning our implementation process with Cisco’s Prepare, Plan, Design, Implement, Operate, and 

Optimize (PPDIOO) methodology, LookingPoint has used this as a guide in developing our process 

to ensure project discovery, design, delivery and support. 

3.2. Planning and Design 
 

LookingPoint staff will meet with key stakeholders to asses and document site information. We will 

work with your team to explain and gather information required to complete the System Build 

Document.  

LookingPoint will review the information gathered and identify any issues if they exist.  Based on 

the review we will produce an end state architecture. The end state architecture will be comprised 

of these documents (Network Diagram(s) and System Build Document).  We will review this 

document prior to installation to ensure smooth project delivery. 

 Planning and Design Objectives 

- Develop project plan and timeline 

- Develop cutover and migration plan 

- Develop high-level test plan  

- Finalize device versions 

o Routers 

o Communications Manager 

o Presence 

o Cisco paging server 

UC Design  

Task Description  

Discover 

 Conduct Analog Discovery Site Walk (Menlo Park) 
o Review physical cross connects 
o Review security system requirements 
o Review gates and door entry systems 
o Document requirements for design process 

Nortel PBX Configuration Review 

 Pull configuration from Nortel PBX 
 Review existing hunt group configuration 
 Review existing extensions assigned 

 

High Level Design Review 

 UC Server Hardware Location 
o Compute/Storage Hosts 
o VMware Version 

 Virtual Appliance Sizing, Location and Version 
o Communications Manager 
o Unity Connection 

Page 40 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

5                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

o IM & Presence 
 PSTN Connectivity 

o Circuit Types and Locations 
o Voice Gateway Types and Locations 

 Wide Area Networking 
o Circuit Types and Locations 
o QoS Implementation 

 Local Area Networking 
o Switch Models and Locations 
o Power over Ethernet Capability 
o VLAN Segmentation 

 Internet Connectivity 
o Circuit Types and Locations 
o Teleworker Connectivity Method 

 Identity Store (Active Directory) 

UC Features Design 

 Communications Manager 
o IP Phone Features 
o Call Routing Features 

 Unity Connection 
o Mailbox Features 
o Unified Messaging 

 IM & Presence 
o Jabber Desk Phone Control 
o Jabber Softphone 
o Phone-only or Full UC 
o Persistent Chat 

Dial Plan Design 

 Intra-site Dial Plan 
 Inter-site Dial Plan 
 PSTN Access Code 
 E.164 Support 
 Class of Control 
 Reserved System Number 

Design Documentation 

 Output documentation 
o Updated High Level Design Diagram 
o UC Features Design Document 
o Dial Plan Design Document 
o Phone System Design Sheet (customer populated) 

 

3.3. Equipment List 
This Section defines in scope equipment to be configured. This equipment list should closely match the BOM 

purchased for site deployment. 

Reference Unified Communications Bill of Materials (BoM): 

Page 41 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

6                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

Network Diagram 

! ! ! !

PSU MEM CPU !Console Reset

UCS C200 M1/M2

Physical Infrastructure
UCS-C220

V
M

w
a

re
 ES

X
i

! ! ! !

PSU MEM CPU !Console Reset

UCS C200 M1/M2

Physical Infrastructure UCS-C220

Virtual Applications

Unity Connection

Publisher Publisher

Jabber

Endpoints
Emergency 
Responder

Messaging Presence

Unified 
Communications 

Manater

Subscriber

Emergency 
Responder

Secondary

Virtual Applications

Subscriber Subscriber

Jabber

Publisher Primary

Union City

Emergency 
Responder

Unity Connection

Unified 
Communications 

Manater

Voice Gateway
Cisco 4321's

PSTN

 

3.4. Staging and Configuration 
This section defines how each hardware element will be configured. It also outlines what feature(s) 
will be enabled as a part of this project. 
 

Stage Voice Gateways 
 Install selected IOS to match Union Sanitary District’s standard. 

o If standard does not exist LookingPoint will select an Image. 
 Label equipment with hostname information 

o Customer to provide label maker. 

Page 42 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

7                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 Configure Equipment for Deployment. 
o Configure IP addresses based on customer IP scheme. 
o Configure applicable hostnames. 
o Configure TACACS / RADIUS Authendication (Customer to provide 

authenication system) Note any equipment that does not support these 
authentication methods cannot be integrated. 

o Configure SSH access class to prevent unauthorized management 
connecdtions. 

o Configure loopback address for management and monitoring. 
o Configure SNMP strings and ACL to prevent unauthorized SNMP connections. 

 
Harware Configuration 

 Configure Voice Router 
o Configure SIP to communicate with Communications Manager. 
o Configure Dial-plan to support in and outbound call routing. 
o Configure SRST to support onsite dialing when the system goes offline. 
o Configure anaog voice cards. (POTS and PRI) 
o Configure VLAN Gateway 
o Configure DHCP relay address if customer plans to use an existing DHCP 

server.  Or configure DHCP on the router. 
 

 Install CUCM 10.X 
o Deploy OVF template on UCS server running VMware 
o Upload install media to VMware datastore 
o Install CUCM 10.x application 

 Configure network settings 
 IP 
 Hostname 
 DNS 
 NTP 
 SMTP 

 Configure OS Administration Credentials 
 Configure Application Administration Credentials 
 Configure database secret password 

o Install product licenses 
 Install Unity Connection 10.X 

o Deploy OVF template on UCS server running VMware 
o Upload install media to VMware datastore 
o Install CUCM 10.x application 

 Configure network settings 
 IP 
 Hostname 
 DNS 
 NTP 
 SMTP 

 Configure OS Administration Credentials 
 Configure Application Administration Credentials 

Page 43 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

8                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 Configure database secret password 
o Install product licenses 

 Install Cisco Paging Server 10.X 
o Deploy OVF template on UCS server running VMware 
o Upload install media to VMware datastore 
o Install CUCM 10.x application 

 Configure network settings 
 IP 
 Hostname 
 DNS 
 NTP 
 SMTP 

 Configure OS Administration Credentials 
 Configure Application Administration Credentials 
 Configure database secret password 

o Install product licenses 
 Install Emergency Responder 10.X 

o Deploy OVF template on UCS server running VMware 
o Upload install media to VMware datastore 
o Install CUCM 10.x application 

 Configure network settings 
 IP 
 Hostname 
 DNS 
 NTP 
 SMTP 

 Configure OS Administration Credentials 
 Configure Application Administration Credentials 
 Configure database secret password 

o Install product licenses 
 Install Unified IM & Presence 10.X 

o Deploy OVF template on VMware for supported server specifications 
o Upload install media to VMware datastore 
o Install CUP 10.x application 

 Configure network settings 
 IP 
 Hostname 
 DNS 
 NTP 
 SMTP 

 Configure OS Administration Credentials 
 Configure Application Administration Credentials 
 Configure database secret password 

 Install VMware tools on all virtual appliances 
 Configure automatic virtual machine startup/shutdown policy in VMware (With Union 

Sanitary District Staff) 
 

Page 44 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

9                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 

3.5. Implementation of Unified Communications 
This section defines the Unified Communications infrastructure and customer requirements. 

Customer Requirements 
 Customer to complete the Phone System Build Document.  The information needed to 

complete this is: Phone MAC Address, Phone Extension, Phone DID, User ID, 
Department, Class of restruction and phone type. 

 All carrier coordination and scheduling of circuit installation is a customer 
responsiblilty.  LookingPoint offers carrier coordination service at an hourly rate. 

 Customer will create AD user accounts and Update their IP Phone field in Active 
directory to support Corporate Directory. 

 Customer will configure all swith ports and DHCP scope to support IP Phones. 
 Customer will be responsible to place handsets at all locations. 

 
  

LookingPoint will Configure the following components 
 

CUCM (Call Control) x2  

Task Description  

System Configuration 

 Unified CM Auto-Registration Policy  
 Unified CM Groups  
 Date/Time Groups  
 Enterprise Parameters  

o Enable BLF for Call Lists 
 CM Service Parameters  

o Enable CDR 
o Enable Call Diagnostics 
o Max Ad-hoc conference participants 
o Max MeetMe conference participants 

 LDAP integration with Active Directory  
 Region Codec Selection  
 Location Call Admission Control  
 SRST References  
 Device Pools  

Media Resource Configuration 

 CUCM Software Media Resources  
o Annunciator 
o Conferencing 
o Media Termination Point 
o Music on Hold Server 

 Create CUCM Software Media Resource Group 
 Hardware Media Resources 

o Conference Bridge 
o Transcoder  

 Media Resource Groups / Lists 

Call Routing Configuration 

 Class of Control 
o Partitions  
o Calling Search Spaces  

 Translation Patterns  
 Route Groups / Lists / Patterns  
 Calling / Called Transformation Patterns  
 Call Park Ranges  
 MeetMe Conference Ranges  
 Direct to voicemail dialing (* + extension ) 

Phone Configuration  Phone Button Templates 

Page 45 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

10                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 Soft Key Templates 
 Customize Phone Background Wallpaper 
 Common Phone Profiles 
 Bulk Administration Phone Templates  
 Bulk Administration Directory Number Templates  
 Bulk Import Phones 

o Physical IP Phones 
o Jabber Soft Phones (CSF) 
o User Device Profiles (Extension Mobility) 

User Configuration 

 Update users Controlled Devices 
o Physical IP Phones 
o Jabber Soft Phones (CSF) 

 Update users Controlled Device Profiles 
o User Device Profile (Extension Mobility) 

 Update users Primary Extension 
 Create UC Service Profile with: 

o IM & Presence Service 
o Voicemail Service 
o CTI Service 
o Mail store Service 
o Conferencing Service 

 Assign users to a UC Service Profile 
 Enable Mobility (Single Number Reach) 
 Assign users to appropriate Access Control Groups 

PSTN Trunk Configuration 
 SIP Trunk[s] to Cisco Voice Gateways for PSTN Access 
 Add Trunk[s] to Route Group[s] 

Voicemail Configuration 

 SIP Trunk[s] to Voicemail Service 
 Add Trunk[s] to Route Group[s] 
 Voicemail Pilot 
 Voicemail Profile 
 Route Pattern 

Security Certificate Configuration 
 Assist in generating and registering trusted 3rd party 

certificate. 

Monitoring Configuration 

 SNMP Community for Remote Monitoring 
 SNMP Traps to Remote NMS 
 SMTP System Email Alerts to IT Helpdesk 

Disaster Recovery Configuration 
 SFTP Backup Device Location (Customer Provided) 
 Enable Backup Schedule 

 

Unity Connection (Voicemail) x2  

Task Description  

System Configuration 

 Authentication Rules 
o Voice Mail Authentication Rule 
o Web Application Authentication Rule 

 Restriction Tables (if outbound PSTN access needed) 
 Upload Holiday Schedule 
 Modify Business Hours Schedule 
 LDAP Integration with Active Directory 
 SMTP Smart Host 

Telephony Configuration 

 Phone System Configuration (CUCM SIP Trunk) 
 Add Port Groups 
 Add Ports 

Unified Messaging Configuration  Add Unified Messaging Service 

Message Storage Configuration 
 Mailbox Quotas 
 Message Aging Policies 

Call Management Configuration 

 System Call Handlers 
 Directory Handlers 
 Custom Call Routing (if necessary) 

Class of Service Configuration  Customize Class of Service Feature Set 

Page 46 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

11                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

Templates Configuration  Customize User Templates 

User Configuration 
 Import Users from LDAP using Customized User 

Template 

Security Certificate Configuration 
 Assist in generating and registering trusted 3rd party 

certificate. 

Monitoring Configuration 

 SNMP Community for Remote Monitoring 
 SNMP Traps to Remote NMS 
 SMTP System Email Alerts to IT Helpdesk 

Disaster Recovery Configuration 
 SFTP Backup Device Location (Customer Provided) 
 Enable Backup Schedule 

 
Current IVR Configuration: 

Page 47 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

12                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 
 

Page 48 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

13                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 
 

 

Page 49 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

14                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 
 

IM & Presence x2  

Task Description  

Presence Configuration 

 Standard Settings 
o CUCM IM&P Publish Trunk 

 Advanced Settings 
o Domain and IM Settings 

 Add Presence Gateway (CUCM) 
 Add additional system managed domains (if necessary) 

Messaging Configuration 
 Allow clients to log instant message history 
 External Database for logging (customer provided DB) 

Page 50 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

15                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 External Database for persistent chat (customer provided 
DB) 

 Modify Compliance/Logging Settings as required 
 Enable Group Chat 
 Enable Persistent Chat (customer must provide external 

DB) 
 Database requirements: PostgreSQL Version 9.1.13 

Application Configuration 
 Legacy clients LDAP mapping (as necessary) 
 Legacy clients CCMCIP profile (as necessary) 

Security Certificate Configuration 
 Assist in generating and registering trusted 3rd party 

certificate. 

Monitoring Configuration 

 SNMP Community for Remote Monitoring 
 SNMP Traps to Remote NMS 
 SMTP System Email Alerts to IT Helpdesk 

Disaster Recovery Configuration 
 SFTP Backup Device Location (Customer Provided) 
 Enable Backup Schedule 

 
 

Cisco Emergency Responder x2  

Task Description  

CUCM Configuration 

 Create Partitions and Calling Search Spaces 
 Create Translation Pattern for 911 
 Create CTI Route Points to send calls to CER 
 Create Route Patterns per ERL / Assign ELIN as CLID 
 Create Emergency Response Route Groups/Lists 
 Create Translation Patterns for 911 ELIN Callback 
 Create Application User for CER API Access 

Emergency Response Configuration 

 Create CUCM cluster integration 
 Create Alert Destinations 
 Create Emergency Response Locations 

Phone Tracking Configuration 

 Add LAN switches for SNMP phone tracking 
 Add SNMP community strings for LAN switches 
 Assign switch ports to appropriate ERL 
 Assign subnets to appropriate ERL (as backup) 

Security Certificate Configuration 
 Assist in generating and registering trusted 3rd party 

certificate. 

Monitoring Configuration 

 SNMP Community for Remote Monitoring 
 SNMP Traps to Remote NMS 
 SMTP System Email Alerts to IT Helpdesk 

Disaster Recovery Configuration 
 SFTP Backup Device Location (Customer Provided) 
 Enable Backup Schedule 

 

Cisco Voice Gateway  

Task Description  

Staging 

 Install Cisco recommended IOS Version 
 Configure the following items 

o Hostname 
o IP Address and Default GW for LAN interface 

Import Current Network Configuration 
 Like for like configuration replacement of existing WAN 

routers  

Update QoS Configuration 

 Create new class-map for voice traffic (match DSCP) 
 Update existing policy-map with voice class 
 Configure the voice-class as a LLQ priority bandwidth 
 Set IP Precedence or ToS expected by MPLS provider 
 Validate QoS policy is matching voice traffic in correct 

class 
PSTN/POTS Configuration  Voice translation rules 

Page 51 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

16                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 Voice translation profiles 
 Dial-peers 

CUCM SIP Configuration 

 Voice translation rules 
 Voice translation profiles 
 Dial-peers 
 SIP media source interface 
 SIP control source interface 
 DTMF method 
 SIP Keep-alive (Option Ping) 

DSP Resource Configuration 

 SCCP DSP for Conferencing 
 SCCP DSP for Transcoding (central site only) 
 SCCP DSP for Media Termination (situationally) 

SRST Configuration 

 Call-manager-fallback settings (SCCP Phones) 
 Voice Register Pool settings (SIP Phones) 
 Voice mail routing 
 Messages button routing 
 Phone display system message 

Management Configuration 

 SNMP Community for Remote Monitoring 
 SNMP Traps to Remote NMS 
 NTP Servers for time synchronization 
 RADIUS/TACACS+ Servers for remote AAA (to customer 

provided AAA server) 
 Local AAA Administration Credentials 
 Enable SSH and generate keys 
 Configure SNMP restricted access-control-list 
 Configure SSH restricted access-control-list 
 Disable HTTP/HTTPS Server 
 Configure Netflow Export (to customer provided collector) 

 

Cisco Paging Configuration  

Task Description  

Cisco Paging Server 

 Configure paging server to support basic paging. 
 Configure up to 4 paging groups 
 Paging through Cisco phones is supported 
 Integration with third party speaker system is not included 

in this statement of work. 

CUCM Configuration 
 Configure route-patterns for paging numbers 
 Configure route-list/route-groups for paging numbers 

 

RightFAX Fax Configuration  

Task Description  

RightFAX Fax Server 

 Configure RightFAX FAX solution 
 Integrate RightFAX solution into Communications 

Manager 
 Configure each user with an associated Fax number 
 Integrate fax solution to deliver via email 
 Exchange/Email system configuration is not included in 

this statement of work. 
 RightFAX solution is known to have workserver 

performance issues. LookingPoint recommends Xmedius 
FAX solution for this deployment. 

CUCM Configuration 
 Configure route-patterns for FAX numbers 

 
 
 
 

Page 52 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

17                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

3.6. Cutover and Migration Support 
This section describes how we will support cutovers and day one support. 

 LookingPoint will support one cutover for this project which includes: 

o Migration of voice services (Cutover Window) 

o Day One Support (Onsite support for end users) 

o Day Two Support (Remote) 

 Issues post day two support will be directed to the assigned PM who will engage engineering 

as needed.  

3.7. Monitoring 
This section defines the monitor recommendations 

1. LookingPoint recommends adding project devices to monitoring. We will provide a list of 

devices and configure required SNMP or other monitoring requirements. 

2. LookingPoint recommends leveraging Prime to monitor the voice infrastructure. 

3.8. Testing and Validation 
This section defines how the installation will be tested and validated. 

1. Create and Validate test plan prior to execution with customer (See Design Phase) 

2. Execute test plan per design session. 

3. Complete the Device Activation Document including each new network element.  

a. This document will define the following: 

i. IP Provisioning 

ii. Security 

iii. SNMP and Monitoring  

iv. Time and NTP 

v. Monitoring 

vi. Backup Configuration 

 

4. Communication Manager Validation 

a. Validate In and Outbound dialing 

b. Validate Auto Attendants 

c. Validate Fax numbers and fax delivery 

d. Validate contact center numbers 

e. Validate Queue Operation 

f. Validate 911 operation 

i. Call 911 from location configured and confirm origin. 

5. Voice Validation 

a. Power off primary UCS server 

i. Validate Monitoring System Triggered Alert (If applicable) 

ii. Validate all phone services are still available 

iii. Power on primary UCS server 

iv. Validate Network Monitoring 

Page 53 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

18                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

v. Validate IP phone failback 

 

3.9. Documentation 
This section defines what documentation will be included as a part of this project. 

1. Device Activation Document 

a. This will include Device: 

i. IP Address 

ii. Serial Number 

iii. Device Status (Monitored, IOS Version, SSH, Authentication Information) 

2. Network Diagram 

3. Completed Site Build Document 

a. Include SmartNet contract numbers in Site Build Document 

UC Documentation  

Task Description  

End User Documentation 
 Customized Quick Start Guide 
 Customized Self-Care Portal Guide 

As-built Documentation 

 Visio/PDF Diagrams for High Level Architecture 
 Move, Add, and Change documentation 
 Device Activation Document (complete system build 

management information) 
 

3.10. Training 
 

UC End User Training  

Task Description  

End User Training 

 
 6 Classes 45 minute training session to review 

o Basic phone operation 
o Dial Plan basics 
o Voicemail setup and access basics 

 

Train the Trainer 

 Provide two one hour train the trainer session for basic 
phone system and voicemail functionality. We will provide 
two sessions for up to 4 people per session. This training 
will enable the participants to provide in site/department 
support. 

o Basic phone operation 
o Dial Plan basics 
o Voicemail setup and access basics 
 

Quick Reference Guide 

 A quick reference guide (one to two pages) will be 
provided by LookingPoint to be placed on all end user 
workstations prior to the proposed UC solution “go-
live”. This guide will provide the base knowledge 
necessary to operate the new IP Phone and 
Voicemail. 

 
 

Page 54 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

19                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

UC Administrator Training  

Task Description  

Administrative Training 

 8 hour administrative training to review 
o System architecture 
o Call flows 
o Basic Troubleshooting 
o How to: Move, Adds, and Change training 

 

3.11. Project Completion 
 

Once the project is complete we will review all documentation in association to this project. 

Review the Project issues list to verify no issues remain. If all documents are complete and no 

issues remain the customer will sign the acceptance document.  

30 days after project completion if there are no issues, the project will auto-close.  

4. Project Management 
 

This section covers how the PMO will engage with Union Sanitary District to deliver the project. 
 
Based on project scope our project management will include the following services and 
deliverables: 
 
- Communication 

o Project initiation call 
o Deliver project communication plan 
o Project kickoff meeting 
o Reoccurring project status meeting 

 
 

- Planning 
o Create project schedule 
o Validate project deliverables 
o Create implementation plan 
o Schedule LookingPoint and applicable customer project resources with customer 
o Provide task list with associated dates 

 
- Implementation 

o Validate schedule is maintained  
o Completion of project task list items 
o Schedule cutovers and or associated maintenance window 
o Issue tracking (as needed) 

 
- Closeout 

o Provide required project documentation 
o Deliver customer completion document 

Page 55 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

20                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 
 

5. Change Order Management 
 

LookingPoint will establish with Union Sanitary District representative a Change Management 
process that will effectively control change and variations to scope, cost and time against the 
contractual definitions, which is the baseline for this process. 
 
 Identify and document a change request. 

 Determine the reason for change. 

 Determine the cost and ownership of change. 

 Agree and sign off for additional work. 

 Change control covers scope, schedule, cost and quality. 

 
No additional work will begin until the change order is approved by LookingPoint and Union 
Sanitary District. 

6. Customer Responsibilities 
 
 Union Sanitary District agrees to provide a suitable work area and network connectivity. 

 Union Sanitary District will provide remote access to ensure work can be completed on time. 

 Union Sanitary District will provide full administrative‐level account access privileges to 

LookingPoint for use while completing this project. 

 Union Sanitary District will provide access to monitoring tools and reports in order to complete 

any assessment work. 

 Union Sanitary District will provide a site contact that we will work with to schedule work and 

answer questions in order to complete the project. 

 Union Sanitary District will notify LookingPoint of any deployment schedule changes, failure to 

do so may impact resource allocation. Cancellation of onsite services without 72 hour notice 

will require a change order. 

 Union Sanitary District will be responsible for all physical equipment installations; this includes 

mounting of AP’s, Racking of Equipment and Network Cabling. 

 Union Sanitary District will provide all required building wiring to support connectivity. 

 Union Sanitary District will provide access to all required server room areas and wiring closets.  

 Delays caused by Union Sanitary District’s failure to meet any responsibilities specified in this 
Statement of Work shall be billed at an hourly rate, including travel and other expenses.  This 
includes but not limited to site readiness. (i.e. Power, Cooling, Circuits and Server/Telco Racks) 

 Union Sanitary District will provide rack or appropriate shelving to install the equipment.  

 Union Sanitary District will provide screws and necessary hardware to support mounting of 

hardware.  

Page 56 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

21                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

 If staging for re-shipment customer will provide a staging area, where we can build equipment.  

 Union Sanitary District will provide Power outlets for equipment installation. LookingPoint 

recommends that equipment be attached to a UPS or surge protector.  

 If shipping to remote locations, customer will be responsible for all shipping arrangements and 

cost. LookingPoint will assist by re-boxing the hardware for shipment. LookingPoint cannot be 

held liable for damaged equipment. 

7. Professional Services Pricing 

7.1. Description of Services 
 

For and in consideration of the mutual agreements herein set forth, the parties agree as follows: 

Services. During the term of this Agreement, LookingPoint shall apply its skills and 
experience as applicable and necessary with regard to: 

Device Configuration Services – Which may include any of the following: Router, Switch, 
Firewall, Load Balancer, IPS, Servers and Storage Devices. 

Training Services – Which may include any of the following: Virtual, onsite or telephone 
based instruction, training and preparation of manuals and/or documentation specific for 
training purposes. 

Integration Services - Which may include any of the following: Configuration and/or 
management of any software (including but not limited to Cisco Communications Manager, 
Cisco Contact Center, Cisco MARS, Cisco Wireless Controller Server, Cisco ACS and 
SolarWinds Orion, etc.). 

Business Analysis – Which may include requirements and/or business process gathering 
and analysis. Additionally, the preparation of a ‘Solutions Document’ outlined in phases (if 
applicable), with recommended needs and options for implementation.  

After Hours Support – After Hours support are hours outside of Monday thru Friday 7am 
to 7pm 

  

Page 57 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

22                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

7.2. Hourly Rates (Out of Scope Work) 
The rates below will be applied to out of scope work and travel to areas outside of the bay area. 
 

Service Description Hourly Rate 

Standard Hourly Rate (Monday – Friday 7am – 7pm) 
* 4 Hour Onsite Minimum / * 2 Hour Remote Minimum 

250.00 

After Hours Rate (Saturday, Sunday and M-F after 7pm) 
* 8 Hour Onsite Minimum / * 2 Hour Remote Minimum 

300.00 

Onsite Trip Charge 
 

$50.00 

 

7.3. Onsite Service Locations 
Union City, CA 

 

7.4. Billing Terms 
Professional services fees will be billed according to the following schedule. 

- Upon receiving signed Purchase Order 25% of professional services will be billed. 

- Upon Completion of staging 25% of the professional services will be billed. 

- Upon Completion of cutover 25% of the professional services will be billed. 

- Upon Project Completion and sign off the remaining 25% will be billed. 

  

Page 58 of 107



Unified Communications Deployment 
 

September 3, 2015 
 

23                                                                                                                                        Initial ____________ 

 

7.5. Project Cost 
 

Professional Services Pricing  

Project Management Included 

Design Review and Staging of Equipment Included 

Onsite Installation, Cutover and Testing Included 
Configuration Review Included 

Final Documentation and Closeout Included 

  

Professional Services (Fixed Price): $56,627.00 

  

 
Out of scope work will fall under the change order process defined above. LookingPoint will notify Union 
Sanitary District prior to performing work that falls outside of this scope.  

Project Acceptance 
If the terms are agreeable to Union Sanitary District initial each page and sign below. Once 
completed please Email or FAX this document and Company PO for the amount mentioned above. 
Email: Orders@LookingPoint.com  
FAX: 925-405-3847 

 

Customer Signature   

  By   

  Title   

  Date   
 
 

Page 59 of 107



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158567 8/20/2015 20150624

158558 8/20/2015 013720150806

8/20/2015 140120150806

8/20/2015 170120150806

8/20/2015 761520150727

8/20/2015 666720150731

8/20/2015 096020150731

8/20/2015 380420150810

8/20/2015 898220150731

8/20/2015 892820150731

158634 8/27/2015 64003

158611 8/27/2015 800394.12

158598 8/27/2015 201303515

8/27/2015 201300829

8/27/2015 20150064

158522 8/20/2015 11525

8/20/2015 11524

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

SWRCB - STATE WATER RESOURCES

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC

RANGER PIPELINES INC

GSE CONSTRUCTION CO INC

COVELLO GROUP INC

ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Description

SRF LOAN #C064771110 - IRVINGTON PROJECT

SERV TO 08/05/15 BOYCE RD PS

SERV TO 08/03/15 IRVINGTON PS

SERV TO 07/21/15 PLANT

SERV TO 07/27/15 NEWARK PS

SERV TO 07/30/15 PASEO PADRE PS

SERV TO 07/30/15 CATHODIC PROJECT

SERV TO 07/29/15 CHERRY ST PS

SERV TO 07/30/15 FREMONT PS

SERV TO 07/30/15 HAYWARD MARSH

NEWARK BACKYARD SS RELOCATION - PHASE 2

THICKENER CONTROL BLDG IMPROV PHASE II

THICKENER CONROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II

COGENERATION PROJECT

NEWARK BACKYRD SS RELOC PH 2 & MISC SPOT REPAIRS PHASI

COST SHARE HET REBATE PROGRAM FY14/15

COST SHARE HEW REBATE PROGRAM FY14/15

Page 1 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$908,164.05
$908,164.05

$2,569.99

$24.89

$781,846.01

324,463.16

$219.15

$64.59

$324.78

$257.61

$54.18

$357,354.85

$260,666.70

$41,192.30

$1,359.50

$35,669.50

$12,037.50

$53,375.00

$809,824.36

$357,354.85

$260,666.70

$78,221.30

$65,412.50

Page 60 of 107



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158704 9/3/2015 20310

9/3/2015 20316

158710 9/3/2015 30103519

158678 9/3/2015 233711

158593 8/27/2015 143122

8/27/2015 143087R

158712 9/3/2015 31180

9/3/2015 31239

158573 8/20/2015 533620150722

158629 8/27/2015 201508

158719 9/3/2015 804224

158671 9/3/2015 XJR4NMKF7

9/3/2015 XJR4NNMT4

158672 9/3/2015 1315773C

9/3/2015 1315773A

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT

SYNAGRO WEST LLC

FRANK A OLSEN COMPANY

CAROLLO ENGINEERS

TJC AND ASSOCIATES INC

US BANK CORP PAYMENT SYSTEM

NICHOLAS J PEROS

VALLEY OIL COMPANY

DELL MARKETING LP C/O DELL USA

DELTA DENTAL SERVICE

Description

IRVINGTON BASIN SEWER MASTER PLAN UPDATE

ALVARADO TREATMENT PLANT SITE USE STUDY

JULY 2015 BIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL

2 ACTUATORS FOR BUILDINGS 80. 66. 51

HIGH SPEED AERATION BLOWER

THICKENER CONROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II

STEVENSON COMMUNICATION TOWER PROJECT

STEVENSON COMMUNICATION TOWER PROJECT

MONTHLY CAL CARD STMT • JULY 2015

SCADA MASTER PLAN & SCADA STANDARDS

4,025 GALS CLEAR DIESEL & 3,873 GALS UNLEADED 10% ETHANO

2 FY16 Q1 DUAL MONITOR SYSTEMS

6 FY16 Q1 STANDARD DESKTOPS

AUGUST 2015 DENTAL

AUGUST 2015 DENTAL

Page 2 of 21

Invoice Amt

$64,146.88

$325.00

$56,927.18

$33,518.28

$11,574.95

$12,594.95

$12,851.33

$8,460.45

$20,143.16

$18,930.08

$18,684.95

$4,403.78

$12,239.86

$12,883.00

$1,649.02

Check Amt

$64,471.88

$56,927.18

$33,518.28

$24,169.90

$21,311.78

$20,143.16

$18,930.08

$18,684.95

$16,643.64

$14,532.02

Page 61 of 107



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158667 9/3/2015 21609

9/3/2015 21675

9/3/2015 21264

9/3/2015 21669

9/3/2015 21721

158612 8/27/2015 800394.12E

158600 8/27/2015 XJR644RC2

8/27/2015 XJR644RF2

8/27/2015 XJK9WKC11

8/27/2015 XJR18JT65

8/27/2015 XJR644WM1

8/27/2015 XJN8PTDK2

8/27/2015 XJR21XM54

8/27/2015 XJR15N7X5

8/27/2015 XJR21XK35

8/27/2015 XJK9WJ7N2

158557 8/20/2015 000720150804

8/20/2015 97720150804

8/20/2015 86420150804

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

CLI METRICS SERVICE COMPANY

GSE CONSTRUCTION CO INC

DELL MARKETING LP C/O DELL USA

DAVID M O'HARA ATTY AT LAW

Description

SERVICE REQUEST: IRVINGTON PS AC WALL UNIT

SERVICE REQUEST: COMPUTER ROOM AC UNIT

SERVICE REQUEST: BLDG 90 & 81 SCREEN & FILTERS

SERVICE REQUEST: FIRST FLOOR MEN'S RESTROOM

SERVICE REQUEST: COMPRESSOR REPLACEMENT

THICKENER CONTROL BLDG IMPROV PHASE II • ESCROW PYMT

1 LATITUDE E7440 • CREDIT

1 TARGUS RUGGED MAX PRO CASE - CREDIT

1 LATITUDE E7440 - CREDIT ISSUED 7/31/15

2 DISPLAY PORT TO HDMI ADAPTERS

1 POWER EDGE R720 - CREDIT

1 POWER EDGE R720

2 CONFERENCE ROOM COMPUTERS

2 SOUND BARS FOR DELL MONITORS

2 IT WORKSTATIONS

1 TARGUS RUGGED MAX PRO CASE

LEGAL SVCS- TRANSITION

CIP LEGAL -JULY 2015

GENERAL LEGAL - JULY 2015

Page 3 of21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$13,883.83
$570.00

$2,433.05

$4,219.00

$1,467.66

$5,194.12

$13,719.30

$-1,577.88

$-43.78

$1,577.88

$31.86

$-10,168.58

$10,168.58

$3,661.33

$48.49

$7,782.85

$43.78

$3,612.00

$241.50

$7,360.50

$13,719.30

$11,524.53

$11,214.00

Page 62 of 107



Check No. Date

158602 6727/2015

158645 8/27/2015

8/27/2015

158533 8/20/2015

8/20/2015

158715 9/3/2015

9/3/2015

9/3/2015

9/3/2015

158692 9/3/2015

158531 8/20/2015

158693 9/3/2015

158560 8/20/2015

158591 8/27/2015

158651 9/3/2015

158532 8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

Invoice No.

902266650

31053

31075

27690

27697

700677

699745

700565

699641

2652

11129816

37432220150901

984604

5865

64217

545124

544435

545125

544434

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES

VALLEY OIL COMPANY

CAUFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES

UNIVAR USA INC

KOFF& ASSOCIATES

BNA • BUREAU NATL AFFAIRS INC

LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMP

POLYDYNE INC

CAL SAN RISK MNGT AUTH

3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC

BRENNTAG PACIFIC. INC.

Description

23.960 LBS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE

10 TUBES SG-100 HSI GREASE

609 GALS MOBIL PEGASUS 805

44.320 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE

43.520 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE

5.028 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.028 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

4,899 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.030 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

RECRUITMENT EXPENSES - BUS SERVICES MANAGER

BNA SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - SEPT 2015

41,420 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-539

WC PAYROLL AUDIT 7/1/13-14

10 PIPEPATCH KIT - WINTER

1282 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE

1282 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE

641 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE

2564 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE

Page 4 of 21

Invoice Amt

$11,174.94

$310.20

$10,095.39

$4,393.32

$4,647.52

$2,273.72

$2,273.72

$2,215.38

$2,274.62

$8,992.59

$7,633.00

$7,621.60

$7,289.92

$6,338.00

$6,270.00

$1,333.60

$1,333.60

$666.80

$2,667.21

Check Amt

$11,174.94

$10,405.59

$9,040.84

$9,037.44

$8,992.59

$7,633.00

$7,621.60

$7,289.92

$6,338.00

$6,270.00

$6,001.21

Page 63 of 107



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158688 9/3/2015 9713451

158578 8/27/2015 64165

158713 9/3/2015 1501

158644 8/27/2015 698842

8/27/2015 698121

158572 8/20/2015 697657

8/20/2015 697305

158574 8/20/2015 30868

8/20/2015 806386

158562 8/20/2015 150729

158555 8/20/2015 5870246

8/20/2015 5870250

8/20/2015 5870242

158571 8/20/2015 15070901

158660 9/3/2015 201519

158569 8/20/2015 130783

158654 9/3/2015 5122771

9/3/2015 5122732

158662 9/3/2015 7568

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

HILTON FARNKOPF & HOBSON LLC

3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC

TONY LIPKA, CONSULTANT & TRNR

UNIVAR USA INC

UNIVAR USA INC

VALLEY OIL COMPANY

PROSAFE

NATIONAL TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER

UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

BLAKELY PICTURES INC.

TOTAL WASTE SYSTEMS INC

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY

CATELLUS DEVELOPMENT CORP

Description

SEWER SERVICE CHARGE PEER REVIEW

6 PIPEPATCH KIT - WINTER & 4 ASSY CABLES

HV ELECTRICAL TRAINING

5,032 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.031 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.029 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.028 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

1 DRUM XLD 15/40 OIL & 30 TUBES ASTD GREASE

8 DIESEL FUEL TANK FUEL TESTING

32 HRS INSPECTIONS & 10 HRS SPCC

CENTRFUIGUAL PUMP TRNG - DUSTIN STRASBURG

CENTRFUIGUAL PUMP TRNG - ELOY SEPULVEDA

CENTRFUIGUAL PUMP TRNG - STEVE NOEGEL

USA ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP

USD TREATMENT PLANT VIDEO

JULY 2015 GRIT DISPOSAL

30 HEBBELL OCC SENSOR LENS

30 HUBBELL OCCUPANCY SENSORS WSPEMUNVIWOD

REFUND #18351

Page 5 of21

Invoice Amt

$5,763.75

$4,956.68

$4,750.00

$2,275.53

$2,275.07

$2,274.16

$2,273.72

$574.89

$3,800.00

$4,200.00

$1,349.00

$1,349.00

$1,349.00

$3,975.48

$3,935.00

$3,893.95

$410.09

$3,006.23

$3,405.00

Check Amt

$5,763.75

$4,956.68

$4,750.00

$4,550.60

$4,547.88

$4,374.89

$4,200.00

$4,047.00

$3,975.48

$3,935.00

$3,893.95

$3,416.32

$3,405.00

Page 64 of 107



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158640 8/27/2015 2714

158550 8/20/2015 7218

158564 8/20/2015 7677

158590 8727/2015 11247573

158720 9/3/2015 20150901

158690 9/3/2015 5

158684 9/3/2015 1108659

9/3/2015 1107340

9/3/2015 1105724

158544 8/20/2015 20150820

158599 8/27/2015 257521

8/27/2015 257520

8/27/2015 257609

158669 9/3/2015 257705

9/3/2015 257702

158695 9/3/2015 571271

158583 6727/2015 912

158548 8/20/2015 10966747

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

SIGNET TESTING LABS INC

AMARJITMATHARU

R A MCARDLE CONTRACTING

BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS

VISION SERVICE PLAN - CA

STEPHANIE HUGHES, CHE P.E.

GROENIGER AND COMPANY

HASLERINC.

CURTIS & TOMPKINS LTD

CURTIS & TOMPKINS LTD

MISSION CLAY PRODUCTS LLC

AUTOMATED NETWORK CONTROLS

KRONOS INC

Description

NEWARK BACKYARD SS RELOCATION - PHASE 2

REFUND #18335

REFUND #18327

PLANT GROUNDWATER WELLS MONITORING -

SEPTEMBER 2015 VISION STMT

P2 PROGRAM SUPPORT

84 FT SEWER PIPE

5 EA LFNP 2-1/2 - 3 DISC SSY F/DBL CHK

1 EA IMPELLER

POSTAGE BY PHONE - TMS 35928

10 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

20 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

14 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

6 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

30 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

ASTD REPAIR COUPLINGS

SCADA / PLC PROGRAMMING SERVICES

TIMEKEEPING SYSTEM CONFIGURATION & PROJ MGMT

Page 6 of21

Invoice Amt

$3,342.24

$3,300.00

$3,300.00

$3,216.86

$3,136.74

$3,066.00

$357.08

$381.50

$2,316.25

$3,000.00

$1,015.00

$1,130.00

$835.00

$395.00

$2,585.00

$2,964.41

$2,945.73

$2,880.00

Check Amt

$3,342.24

$3,300.00

$3,300.00

$3,216.86

$3,136.74

$3,066.00

$3,054.83

$3,000.00

$2,980.00

$2,980.00

$2,964.41

$2,945.73

$2,880.00

Page 65 of 107



Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

158624 8/27/2015 37567201 MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

8/27/2015 37040241

8/27/2015 37594976

8/27/2015 37382521

8/27/2015 37480312

8/27/2015 37519594

8/27/2015 37362409

8/27/2015 37371859

8/27/2015 36957150

8/27/2015 37175093
-

158619 8/27/2015 7653 D R HORTON

158722 9/3/2015 34619 WECO INDUSTRIES LLC

158628 6727/2015 XCTZOOT PACHECO BROTHERS G/

8/27/2015 XCTZOOS

158596 8/27/2015 29311 COLANTUONO HIGHSMIT

158592 8/27/2015 3061 CAL SAN RISK MNGT AU1

8/27/2015 3038

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Description

5 EA PLASTIC GUARD WITH FILTER

1 EA EXTENDED-LIFE SEALED LEAD-ACID BATTERY

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 EA POWER-SAVING TIMER SWITCH

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

REFUND #18346

REPAIR OF OZIII CAMERA

WEED ABATEMENT WORK AUGUST 2015

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES AUGUST 2015

PROP 218 ADVICE

CLAIM: STAR ROOTER & PLUMBING FILE #1906613

CLAIM: WHITMAN FILE #1896332

Page 7 of 21

nvoice Amt Check Amt

$22.59
$2,716.22

$49.23

$905.28

$325.59

$142.87

$665.18

$61.44

$42.73

$322.74

$178.57

$2,500.00
$2,500.00

$2,438.77
$2,438.77

$915.00
$2,280.00

$1,365.00

$2,220.00
$2,220.00

$1,041.50
$2,201.95

$1,160.45

Page 66 of 107



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Iheck No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

158633 8/27/2015 239084 PRESTIGE LENS LAB

8/27/2015 239087

8/27/2015 239163

8/27/2015 239105

8/27/2015 239049

8/27/2015 239051

8/27/2015 239041

8/27/2015 239001

158589 8/27/2015 547438 BRENNTAG PACIFIC. INC.

158559 8/20/2015 240125013 PETERSON TRACTOR CO

158708 9/3/2015 20150826 RICHARD SCOBEE

158570 8/20/2015 180797415 TRENCH PLATE RENTAL COMPANY

158697 9/3/2015 71593 NCC GROUP SECURITY SERVICE LTD

158534 8/20/2015 50754 COKER PUMP AND EQUIPMENT

158621 8/27/2015 20150821 CONGNA LI

158579 8/27/2015 9042174843 AIRGAS NCN

8/27/2015 9929116307

8727/2015 9042035191

Description

SAFETY GLASSES •HUGHES

SAFETY GLASSES -CHAPARRO

SAFETY GLASSES -SEO

SAFETY GLASSES -FANG

SAFETY GLASSES -NOEGEL

SAFETY GLASSES -GRABOWSKI

VDT GLASSES-LI

SAFETY GLASSES - CULBERTSON

1923 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE

TROUBLESHOOT FUEL PRIMING PUMP IRVINGTON PUMP STATIOh

EXP REIMB: ESRI USER CONFERENCE

28 DAYS TRENCH PLATE & EYEBOLT RENTAL

LICENSE RENEWAL NGSSQUIRREL

1 POLYMER ECO-GEARCHEM PUMP

EXP REIMB: REGIS FEE FOR BIOWIN WASTEWATER MODELING T

2CYLARGON

CYLINDER RENTAL

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

Page 8 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$250.76
$2,065.21

$272.66

$211.34

$211.34

$305.51

$272.66

$268.28

$272.66

$2,000.41
$2,000.41

$1,710.02
$1,710.02

$1,665.88
$1,665.88

$1,642.80
$1,642.80

$1,610.00
$1,610.00

$1,588.10
$1,588.10

$1,550.00
$1,550.00

$422.37
$1,525.84

$848.82

$254.65

Page 67 of 107



Check No.

158536

158537

158616

158539

158530

158714

158685

158626

158680

158582

158620

Date

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/27/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

9/3/2015

9/3/2015

9/3/2015

8/27/2015

9/3/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

158617 8/27/2015

158610 8/27/2015

8/27/2015

Invoice No.

257495

257471

20150725.25

312775

206936

10840800

10836500

20150831

1594638

1595080

468436600

20150827

6608278205

9109

403

200703495

HSI0000001

1103236

1105766

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

CURTIS & TOMPKINS LTD

DALE HARDWARE INC

HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS

FERGUSON WELDING SERVICE INC

BLAISDELL'S

KIMTRUONG

HANSON AGGREGATES INC

NEW PIG CORPORATION

SAMI GHOSSAIN

AT&T

IRON MOUNTAIN

HEE ENVIRONMENTAL ENG LLC

GROENIGER AND COMPANY

Description

16 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

17 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

07/15 - ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

SOCKET FUSION RENTAL MACHINE HARRINGTON

2 20" PIPES 150 LB CLASS D PLATE

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

SIT/STAND WORKSTATIONS FOR PAUL & ZEKE

COMPUTER NOTE

11.09 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A AC-R

5.91 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A AC-R

40 BAGS RECYCLED RAGS

REIMB EXPS: CASA CONF - AIRFARE/LODGING/MEALS/PRKING/TA

SERV: 08/10/15-09/09/15

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - JULY 2015

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - JULY 2015

DATA/MEDIA OFF-SITE STORAGE - JULY 2015

10 EA ISOLATOR SPRINGS

84 FEET OF PIPE

1 EA LF 2 BRZ RED PRES BFP

Page 9 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$455.00
$1,420.00

$965.00

$1,366.33
$1,366.33

$1,364.00
$1,364.00

$1,320.00
$1,320.00

$65.96
$1,304.94

$1,238.98

$1,300.73
$1,300.73

$833.97
$1,282.24

$448.27

$1,248.95
$1,248.95

$1,211.75
$1,211.75

$1,178.56
$1,178.56

$642.59
$1,171.57

$292.55

$236.43

$1,147.92
$1,147.92

$549.36
$1,143.41

$594.05

Page 68 of 107



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

158705 9/3/2015 7584101300 RS HUGHES CO INC

158709 9/3/2015 20150831 JOHN SEO

158639 8/27/2015 8122768081315 SIERRA SPRING WATER COMPANY

8/27/2015 4868173081315

158648 8/27/2015 34620 WECO INDUSTRIES LLC

8/27/2015 34621

158595 8/27/2015 50933 COKER PUMP AND EQUIPMENT

158568 8/20/2015 696052200 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNICATIONS

158552 8/20/2015 36650187 MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

8/20/2015 37001714

8/20/2015 36728981

8/20/2015 37001715

158556 8/20/2015 10902201 CITY OF NEWARK

158683 9/3/2015 9802717117 GRAINGER INC

9/3/2015 9801851925

9/3/2015 9797652212

158535 8/20/2015 20150728 COMMUNICATION & CONTROL INC

Description

ASTD PPE & SAFETY SUPPLIES

EXP REIMB: FILAMENT ID CLASS - LODGING/MEALS/AIRFARE

BOTTLESS COOLERS RENTAL

WATER SERVICE 07/17/15 - 08/13/15

1 Y ELIMINATOR, S/C. P&T, FLAT, SHORTY

REPAIR CUES TV TRUCK RC

1 LIQUIFLO REPAIR KIT

WIRELESS INTERNET BACKUP - AUGUST

50 FEET HIGH-PRESSURE PVC TUBING

2 EA CAM & GROOVE HOSE COUPLINGS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 EA V-BELT

ENCROACHMENT PERMITS - ZULMIDA AVE. - NEWARK

2 EA EYE/FACEWASH HEADS

1 EA LOW HEADROOM CHAIN HOIST

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

UTILITY FEE/ANTENNA RENTAL

Page 10 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$1,089.41
$1,089.41

$1,083.10
$1,083.10

$239.00
$1,080.53

$841.53

$328.59
$1,066.24

$737.65

$973.30
$973.30

$960.00
$960.00

$141.67
$959.81

$54.70

$748.48

$14.96

$950.00
$950.00

$78.85
$946.45

$529.68

$337.92

$938.65
$938.65

Page 69 of 107



Check No. Date

158609 8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

158721 9/3/2015

9/3/2015

158580 8/27/2015

158661 9/3/2015

158524 8/20/2015

Invoice No.

9792945900

9793768384

9793273625

9796641042

9793273617

9793349318

9795299719

8042173826

8042179743

5121986

333335

20150710

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

GRAINGER INC

VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY

CALTROL INC

AMAZON.COM LLC

Description

10 EA MINIATURE LAMPS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

10 PAIRS ASTD INSOLES

10 EA HYDROCHLORIC ACID

1 ADJUSTABLE WRENCH

ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES

1 EA PRESSURE GAUGE

12 PKS FILTER GLASS FIBR 4.25CM

1 RACK TEST TUBE PC 24X25 30MM

1 CIMR-VU4A0011 FAA YASKAWA V1000 AC DRV

2 HIGH PRESSURE GAUGES

07/15 - ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

Page 11 of 21

voice Amt Check Amt

$62.48
$928.97

$90.11

$213.62

$141.91

$9.29

$346.22

$65.34

$806.92
$921.96

$115.04

$911.48
$911.48

$857.02
$857.02

$853.35
$853.35

Page 70 of 107



C
h

e
c
k

N
o

.
D

a
te

1
5

8
6

7
9

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

1
5

8
6

1
3

8
/2

7
/2

0
1

5

8
/2

7
/2

0
1

5

1
5

8
6

5
2

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

In
v
o

ic
e

N
o

.

1
0

8
3

7
1

6
4

8
5

1
0

8
3

7
1

6
4

8
8

1
0

8
3

7
1

6
4

8
6

1
0

8
3

7
1

6
4

8
7

1
0

8
3

7
1

6
4

8
9

1
0

8
3

7
1

4
5

1
8

1
0

8
3

7
1

6
4

9
1

1
0

8
3

7
1

6
4

9
2

1
0

8
3

7
1

6
4

9
0

9
5

0
4

8
4

5

9
5

0
8

0
4

9

4
1

2
4

7
5

2

V
e
n

d
o

r

G
&

K
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
O

H
A

C
H

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

A
D

L
E

R
T

A
N

K
R

E
N

T
A

L
S

U
N

IO
N

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
D

IS
T

R
IC

T

C
H

E
C

K
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

8
/1

5
/2

0
1

5
-9

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

U
N

IF
O

R
M

L
A

U
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E

U
N

IF
O

R
M

L
A

U
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E

U
N

IF
O

R
M

L
A

U
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E

U
N

IF
O

R
M

L
A

U
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E

U
N

IF
O

R
M

L
A

U
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E

U
N

IF
O

R
M

L
A

U
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E

U
N

IF
O

R
M

L
A

U
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E

A
S

T
D

D
U

S
T

M
O

P
S

,
W

E
T

M
O

P
S

&
T

E
R

R
Y

T
O

W
E

L
S

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S
A

N
D

M
A

T
S

A
S

T
D

S
A

M
P

L
IN

G
S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

1
E

A
E

Z
C

O
D

R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

K
IT

,
2

0
-G

A
L

A
D

L
E

R
T

A
N

K
R

E
N

T
A

L

P
a

g
e

12
o

f
21

In
v
o

ic
e

A
m

t
C

h
e
c
k

A
m

t

$
8
2
6
.
7
0

$
1
2
6
.
5
2

$
2
7
.
1
7

$
9

5
.9

8

$
1

1
6

.0
6

$
1

5
.1

6

$
3

4
8

.9
5

$
1

1
.2

0

$
2

6
.4

4

$
5

9
.2

2

$
7

6
.1

2

$
7

4
8

.9
8

$
8

1
8

.4
0

$
8

2
5

.1
0

$
8

1
8

.4
0

Page 71 of 107



Check No. Date

158540 8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

158561 8/20/2015

158638 8/27/2015

158674 9/3/2015

158576 8/20/2015

158603 8/27/2015

158546 8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

Invoice No.

1083712573

93620986

1083712574

1083712578

1083712575

1083712580

1083712577

1083712579

1083712576

7537

305642

20150901

32711

9648

63053514

63054825

63051638

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

G&K SERVICES CO

PRO ROOTER

SEW-EURODRIVE INC

PAUL ELDREDGE

VOX NETWORK SOLUTIONS INC

FREMONT EXPRESS COURIER SVC

HOLIDAY INN EXP & STE CAL-EXPO

Description

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

11 EA POLO SHIRTS - M HOVEY

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORMS AND MATS

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWELS

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

REFUND #18337

1 GEARBOX & MOTOR UNIT

TRAVEL REIMB: CASA MEAL/AIR FARE/PARKING

TROUBLESHOOT EXTENSION

COURIER SERVICES: JUNE 2015 DAILY MAIL/2 BOARDMEMBER DE

PREPAY LODGING NOEGEL, 10/20 -10/22/15

PREPAY LODGING SEPULVEDA, 10/20-10/22/15

PREPAY LODGING STRASBURG. 10/20 -10/22/15

Page 13 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$126.12
$814.32

$330.16

$128.36

$59.22

$90.49

$26.44

$15.16

$11.20

$27.17

$800.00
$800.00

$785.78
$785.78

$747.31
$747.31

$720.00
$720.00

$720.00
$720.00

$234.60
$703.80

$234.60

$234.60

Page 72 of 107



Check No.

158694

158614

158636

158647

158686

158528

158585

158666

158615

158584

158625

158655

Date

9/3/2015

9/3/2015

9/3/2015

9/3/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

9/3/2015

8/20/2015

8/20/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

9/3/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

9/3/2015

Invoice No.

37761533

37865069

37894657

37666365

259026

259061

1201644

306013

3I6539

16507

16466

16575

16536

35671

1592303

320308

320126

150846

5081351

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

HANIGAN COMPANY INC

ROCHESTER MIDLAND CORPORATION

WATSON-MARLOW INC

HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS

BAY COUNTIES DIESEL SERVICE

BAY COUNTIES DIESEL SERVICE

CLAREMONT BEHAVIORAL SERVICES

HANSON AGGREGATES INC

BAY AREA BARRICADE SERVICE INC

METROMOBILE COMMUNICATIONS INC

ALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES

Description

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 EA HARD CHAIN & PADLOCK CUTTER

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

70 PACKS DISTRICT LETTERHEAD

1 LOT - BUSINESS CARDS - TOLBERT

HOT WATER LOOP SERVICE

1 HOSE - EPDM FOR BREDEL 400

2 EA VALVE SPRINGS

TEST AND CLEAN DPF UNITS

TEST AND CLEAN DPF UNITS

TEST AND CLEAN DPF UNITS

TEST AND CLEAN DPF UNITS

SEP 2015 EAP PREMIUM

3/4 MED TYPE A AC-R

3 CS MARKING PAINT/MARKER POSTS

100 PAVEMENT MARKERS GREEN/100 5X5 HOT SPOT

ANNUAL RADIO SERVICE - AUG 2015

17 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

Page 14 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$36.89
$690.41

$300.33

$254.28

$98.91

$651.22
$689.69

$38.47

$689.03
$689.03

$677.07
$677.07

$652.02
$652.02

$312.64
$625.28

$312.64

$312.64
$625.28

$312.64

$616.40
$616.40

$598.66
$598.66

$141.91
$585.01

$443.10

$582.75
$582.75

$570.00
$570.00

Page 73 of 107



Check No.

158650

158538

158706

158711

158566

158622

158553

158627

158649

158581

158525

158601

158594

Date

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/20/2015

9/3/2015

9/3/2015

8/20/2015

8/27/2015

8/20/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

8/20/2015

8/27/2015

8/27/2015

Invoice No.

80736472

80736469

80736470

80736468

7152

85340220150824

151739

7949

11672

780899

30207706

25247

1734566

13726991

1158

50789

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

XEROX CORPORATION

EUROFINS AIR TOXICS INC

SAN FRANCISCO WATER DEPT

TECHNICAL SAFETY SERVICES INC

STREAMLINE PLUMBING & DRAIN

LOOKINGPOINT INC

MOBILE MODULAR MANAGEMENT CORP

OLDCASTLE ENCLOSURE SYSTEMS

WILEY PRICE & RADULOVICH LLP

ANALYSTS. INC.

APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SVCS

ELITE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES

CITYLEAF INC

Description

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE

2 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

SERVICE 07/23/15 TO 08/21/15

FUME HOOD CERTIFICATION & ALARM CALIBRATION

REFUND #18328

MONTHLY PREMIER SERVICE - AUG 2015

FMC TRAILER RENTAL - AUG 2015

3 EA STARTER SHAFTS

LABOR & EMPLOYMENT LAW FEES

18 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

TEMP LABOR-QUINTANA. D., WK END 07/25/15

3 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

PLANT MAINTENANCE - AUG 2015

Page 15 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$83.62
$557.76

$17.54

$21.05

$435.55

$550.00
$550.00

$517.08
$517.08

$510.00
$510.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$493.90
$493.90

$492.75
$492.75

$487.50
$487.50

$453.10
$453.10

$451.58
$451.58

$450.00
$450.00

$429.65
$429.65

Page 74 of 107



Check No. Date Invoice No.

158657 9/3/2015 801083

9/3/2015 801730

9/3/2015 801437

9/3/2015 800818

158646 8/27/2015 8042131181

8/27/2015 8042100461

8/27/2015 8042099671

8/27/2015 8042099672

158527 8/20/2015 897121

158607 8/27/2015 1083714517

8/27/2015 1083714521

8/27/2015 1083714523

8/27/2015 1083714522

8/27/2015 1083714520

8/27/2015 1083714519

8/27/2015 1083714524

158545 8/20/2015 601704416

158642 8/27/2015 20062

158668 9/3/2015 5164284

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Vendor

BARNETT MEDICAL SERVICES LLC

VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC

BAY AREA NEWS GROUP EAST BAY

G&K SERVICES CO

HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO

STARLINE SUPPLY COMPANY

CORT

Description

150 LBS PHARMACEUTICAL WASTE REMOVAL

50 LBS PHARMACEUTICAL WASTE REMOVAL

80 LBS PHARMACEUTICAL WASTE REMOVAL

80 LBS PHARMACEUTICAL WASTE REMOVAL

2 BATTERY LITH 2032 3V

6 PKS PH PAPER PANEPHA 0.1-14

1 CS MEDICINE CUP PP 10Z

3 BDH BUFFER REF STD PH4 RED 4L

ADS: LEGAL NOTICES FOR FY16 SEWER SERVICE CHARGE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORMS AND MATS

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWELS

6 CS PAPER TOWELS & 1 CS FACIAL TISSUE

7 CS COMPOSTABLE UTENSILS

OFFICE FURNITURE RENTAL FOR J. BERZON

Page 16 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$170.00
$425.00

$85.00

$85.00

$85.00

$9.39
$392.63

$163.55

$100.69

$99.00

$356.85
$356.85

$126.52
$356.20

$15.16

$11.20

$59.22

$27.17

$90.49

$26.44

$353.49
$353.49

$350.91
$350.91

$348.99
$348.99

Page 75 of 107



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

158663 9/3/2015 30840 CDW GOVERNMENT LLC

158529 8/20/2015 71553 BEECHER ENGINEERING

158618 8/27/2015 601714800 HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO

8/27/2015 601714799

158658 9/3/2015 16590 BAY COUNTIES DIESEL SERVICE

158630 8/27/2015 20150826 PIPE USERS GROUP

158681 9/3/2015 1182521805 GLACIER ICE COMPANY INC

158632 8/27/2015 110513 PREFERRED ALLIANCE INC

158682 9/3/2015 78710 GORILLA METALS

9/3/2015 78713

9/3/2015 78721

158687 9/3/2015 601724581 HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO

158696 9/3/2015 24849537 MOTION INDUSTRIES INC

9/3/2015 24849661

9/3/2015 24849898

158675 9/3/2015 902281303 EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES

158670 9/3/2015 201908.10 DALE HARDWARE INC

158586 8/27/2015 18134100 BECK'S SHOES

158701 9/3/2015 20154501 QUICK SPACE RENTALS

Description

RSA SECURITY ANNUAL MAINTENANCE

STANDBY POWER SYSTEM UPGRADE

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

1 CASE PAPER PLATES

TEST AND CLEAN DPF UNITS

SEMINAR REGISTRATION: CHIU & BAILE

192 EA 7-LB BAGS OF ICE

JULY 2015 SERVICE FEE

METAL. STEEL. STAINLESS, AND ALUMINUM

ASTD METAL, STEEL. STAINLESS. AND ALUMINUM

ASTD METAL, STEEL. STAINLESS. AND ALUMINUM

12 EA ARSENAL NON-ACID R DISINF CLNR

1 EA HOT WATER 3-WAY VALVE PACKING

2 EA HI-POWER V BELTS

2 EA BALL BEARINGS

Dl WATER SYSTEM

08/15 - ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

SAFETY SHOES: A. PAREDES

GUARD BOOTH RENTAL AUGUST 2015

Page 17 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$345.60
$345.60

$340.00
$340.00

$155.07
$327.86

$172.79

$312.64
$312.64

$300.00
$300.00

$266.88
$266.88

$257.40
$257.40

$134.32
$240.01

$34.23

$71.46

$237.87
$237.87

$85.51
$225.78

$19.21

$121.06

$223.00
$223.00

$216.79
$216.79

$208.00
$208.00

$192.50
$192.50

Page 76 of 107



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

158587 8/27/2015 20150825 JUDI BERZON

8/27/2015 20150825.1

158716 9/3/2015 25190706 UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

158543 8/20/2015 9785594186 GRAINGER INC

8/20/2015 9790750252

158703 9/3/2015 275462 RKI INSTRUMENTS INC

158521 8/20/2015 9041886165 AIRGAS NCN

158643 8/27/2015 180807815 TRENCH PLATE RENTAL COMPANY

158637 8/27/2015 20150824 JAMES SCHOFIELD

158631 8/27/2015 20150824 RIC PIPKIN

158526 8/20/2015 114863 ARISTA BUSINESS IMAGING

158541 8/20/2015 17442120150709 GFOA-GOV FIN OFFICERS ASSOC

158635 8/27/2015 8011 RESCUE ROOTER

158699 9/3/2015 20150827 CHRIS PACHMAYER

158563 8/20/2015 72427631 R & S ERECTION OF S ALAMEDA

158565 8/20/2015 20150814 THERESA RODRIGUEZ

158659 9/3/2015 10857670 BLAISDELL'S

Description

EXP REIMB: LODGING FOR CFO RECRUITMENT PANEL MEMBER

EXP REIMB: SNACKS FOR 4 QAI PANELS

FREIGHT FOR PIPE

1EA SCREWDRIVER

1 EA SERVICE CORD

2 SENSOR. OXYGEN, OS-BM2

WELDING TORCH REPAIR

7 DAYS HD QUIK-SHOR RENTAL

EXP REIMB: 2015 NRTC EARLY BIRD MEMBER WEDNESDAY ONLY

EXP REIMB: FY15 4TH QUARTER SAFETY RECOGNITION

SERVICE CALL: HEW - HEWD3L09A

MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL - KULL

REFUND #18347

EXP REIMB: NFPA 705 SAFETY TRAINING, MILEAGE/PARKING

PM SERVICE ON ALL GATES

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT PARTY - DAVID LEATH

1P/OUT FORM 4P 5X11

Page 18 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$141.00
$191.86

$50.86

$190.95
$190.95

$2.00
$182.00

$180.00

$181.50
$181.50

$179.40
$179.40

$166.80
$166.80

$160.00
$160.00

$152.40
$152.40

$150.00
$150.00

$150.00
$150.00

$150.00
$150.00

$144.52
$144.52

$139.25
$139.25

$139.02
$139.02

$137.45
$137.45

Page 77 of 107



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

158588 8/27/2015 10836501 BLAISDELL'S

8/27/2015 10851030

8/27/2015 10852870

158677 9/3/2015 19886 FASTENAL

158641 8/27/2015 20150825.2 JENNIFER SIO-KWOK

8/27/2015 20150825.1

158698 9/3/2015 10932637 CITY OF NEWARK

158702 9/3/2015 75085 REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INTL

158551 8/20/2015 20150817 REGINA MCEVOY

158608 8/27/2015 20150825 MOHAMMAD GHOURY

158549 8/20/2015 20150819 SCOTT MARTIN

158606 8/27/2015 227709 CITY OF FREMONT

158577 8/20/2015 8042024817 VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC

158604 8/27/2015 17369 FREMONT RECYCLING & TRANSFER

158542 8/20/2015 78609 GORILLA METALS

8/20/2015 78641

158700 9/3/2015 239092 PRESTIGE LENS LAB

158673 9/3/2015 615320150818 DISH NETWORK

158597 8/27/2015 9324169 COLE-PARMER INSTRUMENTS

Description

2 TALL USER KITS

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

EXP REIMB: LUNCH CSWI HIRING INTERVIEW & TOUR HELPERS

EXP REIMB: SODA & CHIPS FOR RECRUITMENTS

ANNUAL FIRE PERMIT • NEWARK PS - HICKORY

IRIDIUM SVC FEE SEPTEMBER 2015

EXP REIMB: LUNCH FOR EXEC TEAM DEBRIEFING - CFO/BS MGR

EXP REIMB: ALT COMP RECOG EVENT SNACKS

EXP REIMB: FOOD FOR DAVID LEATH'S RETIREMENT PARTY

MISC SPOT REPAIRS PHASE VI

2 PKS INDICATOR BIO B/T SURE STR

.75 TON GREEN WASTE

ASTD METAL, STEEL. STAINLESS. AND ALUMINUM

ASTD METAL. STEEL. STAINLESS. AND ALUMINUM

SAFETY GLASSES (FRAME REPAIR) - MARTIN. S

SEP 2015 - SERVICE FEE

2 CPC QUICK DISCONNECT COUPLINGS

Page 19 of 21

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$77.00
$137.32

$35.09

$25.23

$135.68
$135.68

$91.97
$129.12

$37.15

$125.00
$125.00

$97.90
$97.90

$95.00
$95.00

$92.90
$92.90

$91.01
$91.01

$89.31
$89.31

$86.28
$86.28

$68.09
$68.09

$29.94
$64.59

$34.65

$60.23
$60.23

$50.90
$50.90

$46.71
$46.71

Page 78 of 107



C
h

e
c
k

N
o

. .
D

a
te

In
v
o

ic
e

N
o

.

1
5

8
5

2
3

8
/2

0
/2

0
1

5
4

0
4

7
2

8
6

1
2

0
1

5
0

8
0

5

1
5

8
6

2
3

8
/2

7
/2

0
1

5
7

7
7

7
6

8
4

9

1
5

8
5

4
7

8
/2

0
/2

0
1

5
5

5
5

1
8

9
7

1
5

8
6

8
9

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

5
5

5
4

9
1

8

1
5

8
6

0
5

8
/2

7
/2

0
1

5
1

1
6

5
2

3
3

5
4

1
5

8
6

5
6

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

7
0

0
5

8
2

9
7

8
8

1
5

8
6

9
1

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

5
2

4
2

4
9

1
5

8
6

6
5

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

4
4

6
1

9
9

1
5

8
6

7
6

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

1
4

5
1

7
4

1
5

8
6

6
4

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

2
8

2
8

4
9

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

2
8

2
7

4
0

1
5

8
6

5
3

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
0

4
2

3
5

9
8

9
0

1
5

8
7

0
7

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

1
6

6
5

5
6

3
0

0
4

1
5

8
5

5
4

8
/2

0
/2

0
1

5
2

4
8

4
8

5
9

8

1
5

8
5

7
5

8
/2

0
/2

0
1

5
9

7
4

9
8

2
7

0
3

3

1
5

8
7

1
7

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

1
0

4
8

7
2

4
5

5
9

1
5

8
7

1
8

9
/3

/2
0

1
5

9
8

5
3

3
2

5
.0

U
N

IO
N

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
D

IS
T

R
IC

T

C
H

E
C

K
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

8
/1

5
/2

0
1

5
-9

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

V
e
n

d
o

r

A
L

A
M

E
D

A
C

O
U

N
T

Y
W

A
T

E
R

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

M
A

T
H

E
S

O
N

T
R

I-
G

A
S

IN
C

H
O

S
E

&
F

IT
T

IN
G

S
E

T
C

H
O

S
E

&
F

IT
T

IN
G

S
E

T
C

F
R

E
M

O
N

T
U

R
G

E
N

T
C

A
R

E
C

E
N

T
E

R

A
P

P
L

IE
D

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
IE

H
U

L
B

E
R

T
L

U
M

B
E

R
S

U
P

P
L

Y

C
E

N
T

E
R

V
IL

L
E

S
A

W
A

N
D

T
O

O
L

E
X

A
M

IN
E

T
IC

S

C
E

N
T

E
R

V
IL

L
E

L
O

C
K

S
M

IT
H

A
IR

G
A

S
N

C
N

S
A

N
L

E
A

N
D

R
O

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
S

U
P

P
L

Y

M
O

T
IO

N
IN

D
U

S
T

R
IE

S
IN

C

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

W
IR

E
L

E
S

S

U
P

S
-

U
N

IT
E

D
P

A
R

C
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E

U
P

S
-

U
N

IT
E

D
P

A
R

C
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

S
E

R
V

T
O

:
0

8
/0

4
/1

5
-

P
A

S
E

O
P

A
D

R
E

C
Y

L
IN

D
E

R
R

E
N

T
A

L
-

J
U

L
Y

2
0

1
5

A
S

T
D

P
A

R
T

S
&

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

4
E

A
8

2
S

E
R

-
M

N
P

T
F

P
IP

E
R

IG
ID

1
H

E
A

R
IN

G
T

E
S

T

2
C

O
N

T
IN

E
N

T
A

L
A

6
3

H
Y

-T
P

L
U

S

A
S

T
D

L
U

M
B

E
R

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S

2
S

H
A

R
P

E
N

A
N

D
R

E
T

O
O

T
H

1
E

A
H

E
A

R
IN

G
T

E
S

T
S

8
S

C
H

L
A

G
E

D
N

D
K

E
Y

B
L

A
N

K
S

5
S

C
H

L
A

G
E

D
N

D
K

E
Y

B
L

A
N

K
S

A
S

T
D

P
A

R
T

S
&

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

3
S

T
R

A
IN

R
E

L
IE

F
1

/2
N

P
T

C
A

B
L

E
R

A
N

G
E

.1
2

5
-.

3
7

5

2
E

A
M

E
T

R
IC

O
IL

S
E

A
L

S

W
IR

E
L

E
S

S
S

E
R

V
0

7
/0

2
/1

5
-0

8
/0

1
/1

5

F
R

E
IG

H
T

F
O

R
C

H
4

W
ID

E
T

E
M

P
E

R
A

T
U

R
E

S
E

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
P

IN
G

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
W

/E
0

8
/0

8
/1

5

P
a

g
e

2
0

o
f

21

In
v
o

ic
e

A
m

t
C

h
e
c
k

A
m

$
4

1
.5

4
$

4
1

.5
4

$
3

5
.1

3
$

3
5

.1
3

$
3

4
.9

5
$

3
4

.9
5

$
3

1
.3

6
$

3
1

.3
6

$
2

9
.0

0
$

2
9

.0
0

$
2

8
.1

6
$

2
8

.1
6

$
2

5
.3

1
$

2
5

.3
1

$
2

5
.0

0
$

2
5

.0
0

$
2

4
.7

5
$

2
4

.7
5

$
1

4
.4

5
$

2
3

.4
8

$
9

.0
3

$
1

8
.9

2
$

1
8

.9
2

$
1

7
.4

0
$

1
7

.4
0

$
1

5
.0

8
$

1
5

.0
8

$
1

4
.0

4
$

1
4

.0
4

$
1

3
.6

6
$

1
3

.6
6

$
1

3
.3

9
$

1
3

.3
9

Page 79 of 107



Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

Invoices:

Credit Memos: 3 -11,790.24

$0-$1,000: 234 63,000.69

$1,000-$10,000: 84 252,381.39

$10,000. $100,000 20 486,390.29

Over$100,000: 4 2,308,031.61

Total: 345 3,098,013.74

CHECK REGISTER
8/15/2015-9/04/2015

Page 21 of 21

Description

Checks:

$0- $1,000:

$1,000 -$10,000:

$10,000 -$100,000

Over $100,000:

Total:

Invoice Amt Check Amt

113

67

18

4

202

42,412.08

214,702.84

504,888.86

2,336,009.96

3,098,013.74

Page 80 of 107



Page 81 of 107



Page 82 of 107



Page 83 of 107



Page 84 of 107



Page 85 of 107



Page 86 of 107



Page 87 of 107



Page 88 of 107



Page 89 of 107



Page 90 of 107



Page 91 of 107



Page 92 of 107



Page 93 of 107



Page 94 of 107



Page 95 of 107



Page 96 of 107



Page 97 of 107



Page 98 of 107



Page 99 of 107



Page 100 of 107



Page 101 of 107



Page 102 of 107



Page 103 of 107



Page 104 of 107



Page 105 of 107



Page 106 of 107



Page 107 of 107




	09-14-2015 Board Packet
	1 09-14-15 Agenda
	THIS MEETING WILL BE TELECONFERENCED WITH DIRECTOR LATHI FROM THE GUEST PARKING AREA ON OCASO CAMINO, WEST OF THE intersection of Paseo Padre Parkway in FREMONT, CALIFORNIA.          THE TELECONFERENCE LOCATION SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Pledge of Allegiance.
	3. Roll Call.
	5. Written Communications.
	6. Oral Communications.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

	2 09-14-15 Committee Notice
	4 08-24-15 Regular Meeting Minutes
	UCALL TO ORDER
	President Toy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
	UPledge of Allegiance
	URoll Call
	PRESENT: Jennifer Toy, President
	Tom Handley, Vice President
	Pat Kite, Secretary
	Manny Fernandez, Director
	Anjali Lathi, Director (via teleconference)
	STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
	Karen Murphy, District Counsel
	Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager
	Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
	Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
	James Schofield, Collection Services Manager
	Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager
	Kathy Destafney, Business Services Manager
	Chris Pachmayer, Electrical/Support Team Manager
	Sheila Tolbert, Human Resources Manager
	Laurie Brenner, Organizational Performance Program Manager
	Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent
	Todd Jacob, IT Administrator
	Mike Marzano, Environmental Health and Safety Program Manager
	Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator
	Jamie Rojo, Accounting Technician
	Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst
	Kristina Silva, Administrative Specialist
	GUEST: Alice Johnson, League of Women Voters
	UMONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT
	This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.
	a. Monthly Odor Report & Financial Reports:  General Manager Eldredge stated there was one odor reported during the month of July 2015, by a resident located on Bret Harte Court in Fremont.  District staff inspected the USD mains and city storm drain ...
	Principal Financial Analyst Scott reported the following for the month of July:
	 Revenues:
	o $519,000 received in capacity fees for Washington Hospital Phase II
	o $101,000 for new Ohlone College buildings
	o $58,000 for Synergy Corporate Housing in Union City
	o $329,000 received in State Revolving Fund proceeds for the Thickener project
	 Expenses:
	o $65,000 credit was received from ACWD for the washer rebate program
	o $76,000 for actuators and pumpers purchased from the Plant & Pump Station Renewal & Replacement
	o $411,000 payment made to the State Revolving Fund loan for the Boyce Pump Station
	July 2015 investment activities for purchases, interest payments, and maturities were reviewed.
	Internal fund activity and CalPERS Retiree Medical Trust Statements were reviewed.
	b. Annual Performance Report for District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures:  Operational Performance Program Manager Brenner stated the 2015 USD Strategic Performance Report, included in the meeting packet, summarizes the District’s progress meeting o...
	Operational Performance Program Manager Brenner highlighted several results, both positive and negative, included in the staff report.
	 There were two incidents of critical asset failure with impacts.  Both incidents were associated with rapid regrowth of roots in the sewer mains.
	 The District had two Category 1 sanitary sewer overflows.  The first occurred on October 28, 2014, in Fremont on Palm Avenue.  It was reported that 495 gallons had spilled; 445 gallons of the amount spilled were captured.  The second overflow occurr...
	 Operational expenditures were 93% of budget, missing the target of 95% by 2%.
	 District staff responded to 97.7% of all calls for service within one hour.  The average response time was less than 42 minutes.
	 94% of planned outreach activities were completed.  California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) presented the District with their Fiscal Year 15 Achievement Awards in the Outstanding Public Outreach and Education category at the CASA confer...
	 Employee turnover rate was 6.2%.  1.6% was due to resignations, the remaining amount was due to planned retirements.
	 Assessments of the training module program exceeded the annual target by 15%.
	 Three lost-time injuries occurred during Fiscal Year 2015
	 Three incidents of vehicle or equipment damage occurred.
	 80% of employees were trained on mandatory safety subjects.
	 The Workers Compensation Experience Modifier (X-Mod) was decreased to 1.01 from 1.16.
	 300 worksite inspections were performed by management.
	c. Business Services Balance Score Card Measurements and Results were displayed on poster boards at the back of the Boardroom.  Those who were present reviewed the posters.  The posters reflected the information included in the meeting packet.
	UWRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
	There were no written communications.
	UORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	There were no oral communications at either meeting location.
	This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Business Services Manager Cortes stated the salary changes contained in the current pay schedule reflect the salary for the newly created Communications and Intergovernmental Communications Coordinat...
	It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Kite, to Approve the Publicly Available Pay Schedule Effective August 22, 2015.  Motion carried by the following vote:
	UDiscuss and Provide Direction (as necessary) regarding public outreach, scheduling, and procedures for sewer service rates
	This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  General Manager Eldredge stated that at a previous meeting Vice President Handley requested scheduling a discussion regarding public outreach for annual rate hearings, public outreach f...
	It was agreed to have the District hold one town hall meeting for the Proposition 218 rate notification prior to the Public Hearing.  The desired date for the Public Hearing is December 14, 2015.  Concerns were expressed that the schedule of deadlines...
	Information for fact sheets and notifications will be subject to legal review.  The Board agreed an Ad Hoc Committee, consisting of two Board members, should review the content of the Proposition 218 notification mailer.
	Board members agreed that it is important to acknowledge and respond in a timely manner to customer communications.  Any protest emails and customer communications regarding sewer service rates will be incorporated into the public record and the autho...
	It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to direct staff to proceed with the addition of a town hall meeting to occur prior to the Public Hearing to consider rates; to proceed to schedule the Public Hearing for Proposition 218 r...
	UDESIGNATE AND APPOINT TWO BOARD REPRESENTATIVES TO AD HOC SUBCOMMITTEE ON GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS
	District General Counsel Murphy stated that per the employment agreement between the District and Mr. Eldredge, the General Manager’s salary should be reviewed annually.  This agenda item requested two representatives be designated to an Ad Hoc Subcom...
	INFORMATION ITEMS:
	UCheck RegisterU
	All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

	7 Changes to Mission Statement
	BoardItemMission09145
	Mission Statement 2006
	ProposedMissionFY16

	8.2 Attachment 1_Redacted
	8.3 Attachment 2_Redacted
	9 Fred Ramos Claim
	10.1 Email Disclosure for Webpage
	10.2 Sample Board webpage 9_14_2015
	11 Ad Hoc for 218 Notification
	12 Phone System Replacement
	Phone System Board Action Item
	USD-Quote
	USD - UC Deployment SoW v1.2 - LGL REMOVED

	13a Check Register
	99 Newspaper Articles

	2015_09_25_16_14_28



